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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M52

Year ended 31 December

HE12A31HILLEE

Increase
2020 2019 /(decrease)
20204 20198 M/ (A

RM’000 RM’000

FoEs FoEs

Results (Audited) (Audited)

& (RE®Z) (&%)
Revenue g 76,719 71,526 7.3%
Gross profit EF 19,185 29,622 (35.2)%
Profit before tax PRI AR 704 19,015 (96.3)%

(Loss)/profit for the year FR (518 &

(excluding listing expenses) (FEfEEHREX) (180) 16,593 (101.1)%
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (B8 af] (5,065) 13,053 (138.8)%
Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) BREAKREERF

per share (RM sen) (B518) (L EHW) (0.67) 2.18 (130.7)%

As at As at
31 December 31 December Increase/
2020 2019 (decrease)

%2020 720194
12A31H 128318 #&m/ (B

RM’000 RM’000

FLER FLEH

Financial Position (Audited) (Audited)

MR (RE®) (B 1Z)
Total assets WEE 106,321 70,234 51.2%
Loans and borrowings EE VSR 18,470 16,388 12.7%
Shareholders’ equity B R 80,917 47,992 68.6%
Current ratio (times)* TRENEEE (£5)* 6.2 7.5 (17.3)%
Gearing ratio (%)** EEBBLER%)™ 22.8 34.1 (11.9)%
Return on equity (%)*** 1 35 [O] 3R 2 (%) (6.3) 27.2 (33.5)%
* Current ratio is calculated based on the total current assets divided by the — * MEBLEERTTRNEREFEERZAHEELE

total current liabilities as at the end of each reporting year.

* Gearing ratio is calculated based on the total loans and borrowings divided
by the total equity as at the end of each reporting year and multiplied by
100%.

e Return on equity is calculated based on profit/(loss) for the year for each

reporting year divided by the total equity as at the end of each reporting year
and multiplied by 100%.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH

REGISTERED OFFICE
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Hong Kong
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47810 Petaling Jaya
Selangor
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Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman lIslands
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Wan Chai, Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am delighted to
present the annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Founded in 2000, the Group is a Malaysian-based outsourced document
management services provider and related software application and
enterprise software solutions developer. Our Group’s services include
the provision of document management services and enterprise software
solutions in Malaysia and Singapore.

Our major customers include a number of highly reputable commercial
enterprises in the banking, insurance and retail industries and are located
in Malaysia and Singapore. We have a stable business based on our long-
term relationship with our major customers. As we possess the technical
capability, flexibility of customising our software to mest our customers’
specific needs and ability to provide accurate and efficient processing, we
believe this has led to a majority of our customers to continue using our
services.

The Group’s competitive strengths have contributed to our continued
success and distinguished us from our competitors. We believe that
our competitive strengths lie in four key specific areas of the business,
namely:

(1) proprietary technology and process advantage;

(2)  established and loyal customer base;

(8)  we are an acceptable service supplier to banks; and

(4)  experienced management team with a proven track record of
delivering growth.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHRS

2020 LISTING

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 27 March 2020. The Listing reinforced our sense
of mission and marks an exciting new chapter for the Company as we
look forward to increasing our investment in technology to achieve a rapid
development of our technology platform to realise our business goals.
We believe that the strength of our technology will give us a competitive
advantage and allow us to progress towards our growth and profit targets
through the rapid development of products and services to a wider group
of customers.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2020, our Group recorded an increase in revenue of
7.3% from approximately RM71.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RM76.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase was mainly due to an increase in revenue generated
from the provision of outsourced document management services from
approximately RM64.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RM74.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, as
partially offset by a decrease in revenue generated from the provision of
enterprise software solutions from approximately RM7.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RM2.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

Our gross profit decreased by approximately RM10.4 million or 35.2%
from approximately RM29.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RM19.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The decrease in gross profit was mainly attributable to the decrease
in our provision of enterprise software solutions and the decrease in
demand for document print and mail fulfilment services and medical 1D
card print and mail fulfilment services. Our gross profit margin decreased
by approximately 16.4% from approximately 41.4% for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately 25.0% for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to: () the decrease in revenue generated from the provision of
enterprise software solutions to our customers, which had a higher gross
profit margin; and (ii) the increase in revenue generated from the provision
of mail fulflment services, which had a significantly lower gross profit
margin.

Our Group incurred a loss for the year of approximately RM5.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, compared to a profit for the
year of approximately RM13.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, mainly due to the decrease in gross profit and the increase in
administrative expenses.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFEHRS

INDUSTRY REVIEW

The outsourced document management services industry has evolved
rapidly along with the advances in internet technology; and we have
foreseen and adapted our business model to this change in stride
by continuously evolving and renewing our service offerings under
our Streamline Suite applications towards more efficient document
processing, electronic delivery fulfilment and solutions.

Apart from this digitalisation trend, the global adoption of software as a
service or subscription (“SaaS”) for software application solution delivery
will increase demand from existing and new customers to adopt our
Streamline Electronic Document Warehouse (‘EDW”) through SaaS
where services are delivered from our data centre. Furthermore, as
our customers are mostly financial institutions, our Streamline EDW or
services will have to be hosted in a Tier 3 data centre.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

With the outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19”), the
Malaysian government has taken various preventive measures, including
the Movement Control Order (“MCQO”) which was implemented throughout
the country and resulted in the closure of all government and private
premises except those involved in essential services. The MCO has
resulted in material adverse effects on Malaysia's overall economy.
However, since there is opportunity in every challenge, we aim to turn this
into an opportunity to increase our market share by providing the best
services to our customers. We believe that the post-COVID-19 world will
see the hastened acceleration of the rapid shift of financial organisations
toward interaction with customers through omni-channel and artificial
intelligence to assist engagement with customers and automation to
enhance business processes. With this faster adoption, there will be
opportunities in SaaS for online health care, education, commerce and
finance in the future. The COVID-19 crisis has made these technology-
related changes imperatively more urgent than ever and the change in top
management alignment on a company’s digital strategy will continue.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | would like to take
this opportunity to express my appreciation for the relentless support of
our valued Shareholders and customers. Last but not least, my gratitude
goes to the management team and all staff for their commitment,
dedication and tireless efforts during the year, especially in the recent
period since the outbreak of the COVID-19.

Ling Sheng Hwang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwmA DR

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

We are a Malaysian-based outsourced document management services
provider and related software applications and enterprise software
solutions developer. Our outsourced document management services
include (i) electronic document delivery; (i) document print and mail
fulfilment; (i) magnetic ink character recognition (“MICR”) cheque print
and mail fulfilment; (iv) medical ID card print and mail fulfilment; and (v)
document imaging and scanning services.

In or around 2005, we commenced developing our proprietary software
applications that focused on digital transformation of documents and
information and providing outsourced services in electronic document,
print document delivery and document management hosting services
for Malaysian companies in banking, insurance and retail industries. In
addition to using our proprietary software for our outsourced document
management services, we also provide enterprise software solutions to
our customers.

The outsourced document management services industry has evolved
rapidly along with the advances in internet technology; and we have
foreseen and adapted our business model to this change in stride
by continuously evolving and renewing our service offerings under
our Streamline Suite applications towards more efficient document
processing, electronic delivery fulfilment and solutions.

Apart from this digitalisation trend, the global adoption of SaaS for
software application solution delivery will increase demand from existing
and new customers to adopt our Streamline EDW, through SaaS.
Furthermore, as our customers are mostly financial institutions, our
Streamline EDW or services will have to be hosted in a Tier 3 data centre.

In light of the above, we aim to upgrade our IT infrastructure and expand
our capacity to host and provide our Streamline EDW through SaaS in a
Tier 3 data centre facility in Cyberjaya, Selangor, Malaysia. Please refer to
the section headed “Business” in the Prospectus. This new data centre
facility will contribute to our Group’s outsourced document management
services by allowing our Group to enhance our document hosting
capability for electronic distribution and enterprise software solutions
to our customers. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had applied
approximately RM6.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.0 million)
out of its internal resources for prepayment in relation to the design and
project management of the Tier 3 data centre. However, the relevant work
streams in relation to the development of such data centre has been put
on hold as a result of the outbreak of the COVID-19. Please refer to the
paragraph headed “Future Plans and Prospects” for details.

FE 5 OEE R AT =R
BAA—RERNFRADHIMNIXHER
RBREBREMRGEAREF REERTE
R EFREE - RFIBIMIXHEIERE B 1A()
BT XHEE ()T EN R B4 TR S (i) 2
KEFHR (TMICRJ) X BITEN R ER A FIE ; (iv)
BERDRITENR A FIE ; (V)X &R IR
AR %5 o

pr2006F Al HFIRBREAEXH KA
MBS CEBRNEERMEARR 1R KR
ARRIT - REATZETENATRMHEEFX
AT BIER X EEEERTFIN
R¥ - FBRERRMNFIARGFREHEINIMHE
BRBIIN RAITARFREEERGERS

=
E30

BEEOBAERMNED I XHEEERBIT
XBRAR;, MAMEERIZE L WEBT
R K B #Streamline SuitefE FBiZ FFFriR
AR BRI FAMENXHRE - BEFRNUE
ERERRF > REEFBENARBEZEL

FREBEBEN RGEERBRAERNEEAE
R#NSaaSH B iBSaaSIENMIRE TR RIEE X
FiStreamline EDWHYEE K o lE4h » RIS FFIBIE
B RED AR E > FIFIRIStreamline EDWEY
RFEBR = RBIHEF LTS

BRU LM RMREEEERATTHEER
NI EY = AR EHR R0 BT BRI E AR
RERREAR BERMILE REBSaaSiz
{ftStreamline EDWBYBE ] o B 2 RHIBRZ=F2 [
B — e ZMBBEFROREEREEMAE
PDERAEFFLRBEEERGEBRFENHEHT
BED KMARERNIINIXHEEREE
HER 7220205128318 ZEE B H R
BERAFANCCABYER HER12.08
BAET FA=ZRBEFLNRHRIBEEEE
FRIE o 28T > A Z BUE O WAER TIERE
ECOVID- 1918 mMEFE BB F2RE X
KB KA = — e

2020 f£¥Rk  C-Link Squared Limited 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwmA D

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

We intend to achieve sustainable growth in our business and create long-
term shareholders’ value. To achieve our goals, we propose to implement
the following strategies:

1. Expanding our Group’s data processing and technical capacity:

(@  build a new Tier 3 data centre to upgrade our information
technology infrastructure for expanding our outsourced
document management services and our enterprise software
solutions;

(b)  strengthen our Group’s technical operation support team;
and

(c) expand our research and development team to develop
new applications within our Streamline Suite and front-end
solutions.

2. Expanding our market presence locally and exploring expansion
regionally to capture further market share:

(@  maintain and strengthen our relationship with existing
customers and capture new customers within Malaysia and
Singapore; and

(b)  pursue appropriate strategic acquisitions and business
opportunities.

3. Increasing our Group’s visibility, operational efficiency and
profitability through obtaining Multimedia Super Corridor (“MSC”)
Malaysia status.

As a result of the unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19 since the
beginning of 2020, the Malaysia Government has taken a series of
preventative measures throughout the country on 18 March 2020,
including but not limited to the MCO. Due to the country-wide lockdown
measures under the MCO, our negotiation of the proposed acquisition of
a parcel of land for the construction of our new Tier 3 data centre could
not begin in April 2020 (as disclosed in the Prospectus). In addition to the
delay in our development of this new Tier 3 data centre, the MCO had
resulted in material adverse effects on Malaysia’s overall economy for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

10 C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwmA DR

However, we believe that the post-COVID-19 world will see the hastened
acceleration of the rapid shift of financial organisations toward interaction
with customers through omni-channel and artificial intelligence to assist
engagement with customers and automation to enhance business
processes. The rates of adoption of such digitisation will not be limited to
customer-facing elements of organisations but also to the core internal
operations (such as back-office and customer service) in the supply chain.

Unsurprisingly, compared to the pre COVID-19 world, there has been an
increase in (i) top management alignment to implement these changes, (i)
funding of digital initiatives and (jii) execution of the required changes to
position the organisations better than they were. With this faster adoption,
there will be opportunities in SaaS for online health care, education,
commerce and financials.

The COVID-19 crisis has made these technology-related changes
imperatively more urgent than ever; this momentum along with the top
management alignment on a company’s digital strategy will continue
in the future. The Group will also continuously monitor any changes in
the situation and make timely responses in the implementation of the
aforesaid growth strategies.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our total revenue amounted to approximately RM71.5 million and RM76.7
million for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020,
respectively, which was mainly derived from the provision of outsourced
document management services and enterprise software solutions.

Outsourced document management services

Our outsourced document management services include (i) electronic
document delivery; (i) document print and malil fulfilment; (i) MICR cheque
print and mail fulfilment; (iv) medical ID card print and mail fulfilment; and
(v) document imaging and scanning services.

Our revenue generated from the provision of outsourced document
management services represent approximately 90.2% and 97.0% of the
total revenue for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020, respectively. The revenue from the provision of outsourced
document management services increased by approximately RM9.9
million or 15.4% from approximately RM64.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RM74.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. Such increase in revenue was mainly due to (i) the
significant increase in the unit price charged to our customers for the
mail fulfiment service, which was part of the print and mail fulfiment
services, so as to absorb the significant increase in cost of sales, mainly
consisting of postage cost for the year ended 31 December 2020; as was
partially offset by (i) the decrease in demand for document print and mail
fulfilment services and medical ID card print and mail fulfiment services
for the year ended 31 December 2020 as a result of the slowdown in
economy and implementation delay of certain projects caused by the
unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19 and the MCO imposed by the
Malaysia government during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEswm Rk th

Enterprise software solutions

We provide enterprise software solutions to our customers using our
proprietary streamline software and generate revenue mainly from license
fees, maintenance fees and implementation fees.

Our revenue generated from the provision of enterprise software solutions
represent approximately 9.8% and 3.0% of the total revenue for the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020, respectively. Our
revenue from the provision of enterprise software solutions decreased
by approximately RM4.8 million or 67.5% from approximately RM7.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RM2.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in revenue
generated from the provision of enterprise software solutions was
mainly due to (i) the substantial completion in 2019 of our provision of
Streamline Suite solutions services to two customers in Singapore; and
(i) the decrease in demand for enterprise software solutions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 as a result of the slowdown in economy and
implementation delay of certain projects caused by the unprecedented
outbreak of COVID-19 and the MCO imposed by the Malaysia during the
year.

Cost of sales

Our cost of sales increased significantly by approximately RM15.6 million
or 37.3% from approximately RM41.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RM57.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such increase in cost of sales was mainly attributable to
a significant increase in postage cost charged by the Malaysian national
postal service provider for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased by approximately RM10.4 million or 35.2%
from approximately RM29.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RM19.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
as a result of the net effects of the factors abovementioned. Our gross
profit margin decreased by approximately 16.4% from approximately
41.4% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately 25.0% for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in gross profit margin
was mainly attributable to: (i) the decrease in revenue generated from the
provision of enterprise software solutions to our customers, which had a
higher gross profit margin; and (i) the increase in revenue generated from
the provision of mail fulflment services, which had a significantly lower
gross profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwmA DR

Other income and gains

Our other income and gains increased by approximately RM1.1 million
or 196.3% from approximately RMO0.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RM1.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was mainly attributable to government grants in
relation to the stabilisation of employment in Malaysia and Hong Kong as
well as net realised foreign currency exchange gain.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately RM9.3 million
or 90.2% from approximately RM10.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to approximately RM19.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to (i) the increase
in recognition of listing expenses incurred in relation to the Listing on the
Listing Date; (ii) additional administrative costs incurred by the Group for
meeting its post-listing obligations and achieving its long term business
development objectives after the Listing; (i) the increase in allowance
for expected credit losses on trade receivables and bad debts of trade
receivables as a result of the slowdown in economy caused by the
unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19 in Malaysia; and (iv) the increase in
administrative staff costs.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by approximately RM0.3 million or 28.9%
from approximately RM0.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately RMO.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in interest expenses in
relation to the term loan of RM19.0 million which was drawn down in
August 2018.

Profit before tax

Our profit before tax amounted to approximately RMO0.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RM19.0 million). Such decrease in
profit before tax was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit and the
increase in administrative expenses as abovementioned.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwmA D

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense decreased by approximately RM0.2 million or
3.2% from approximately RM6.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RM5.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. Although the profit before tax of the Group decreased for the year
ended 31 December 2020, income tax credits have not been recognised
in respect of tax losses incurred by the Company and certain subsidiaries
and income tax expense have been provided for in respect of the
assessable profits generated by certain subsidiaries in Malaysia. Such
decrease in income tax expense was mainly due to the decrease in gross
profits generated by certain subsidiaries in Malaysia as partially offset by
the underprovision of income tax expense for prior years.

Profit/(loss) for the year

Our loss for the year amounted to approximately RM5.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: profit for the year of approximately
RM13.1 million). Such loss for the year was primarily due to the
decrease in gross profit and the increase in administrative expenses as
abovementioned.

Final dividend

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2020. Please refer to Note 30 of the Notes
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report for further
details.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the total loans and borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately RM18.5 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RM16.4 million), representing an increase of approximately
RM2.1 million or 12.7% as compared to that as at 31 December 2019.
The Group’s loans and borrowings were at floating interest rate which
ranged between 3.50% to 5.60% during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: 4.75%) and denominated in RM. As at 31 December 2020,
the loans and borrowings included secured bank loans of approximately
RM14.2 million with maturity of over 5 years and secured short term bank
loans and bank overdrafts of approximately RM4.3 million which had
been settled subsequent to the Reporting Period. As at 31 December
2020, certain loans and borrowings of the Group were secured by first
party open charge over the leasehold land, the factory building and the
shoplot of the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash
and bank balances of RM40.8 million (2019: RM26.1 million), which were
denominated in RM and HKD.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEs Rk th

The Group maintains a solid financial position and was in a net cash
position as at 31 December 2020. The Group is able to meet its
obligations when they become due in its ordinary and usual course of
business. The current ratio, being the ratio of total current assets to total
current liabilities, was around 6.2 times as at 31 December 2020 (31
December 2019: approximately 7.5 times). The Group’s working capital
requirements were mainly financed by internal resources.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2019: Nil).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material capital
commitments (31 December 2019: Nil).

Funding and treasury policy

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity position
for the year ended 31 December 2020. To manage the liquidity risk, the
Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments
can meet its funding requirements from time to time. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument.

Charges on group assets

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Liquidity and financial
resources” in this report, no assets of the Group were charged to secure
loans and borrowings granted to the Group as at 31 December 2020.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Malaysia with most of its transactions
settled in RM. The assets, liabilities and transactions arising from the
operations are mainly denominated in RM. Although the Group may be
exposed to foreign currency exchange risks, the Board believes that the
future currency fluctuations will not have material impact on the Group’s
operations and did not engage in any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange risks for the year ended 31 December
2020. The Group has not adopted formal hedging policies and would
consider adopting such policies if the need arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was approximately
22.8% (31 December 2019: approximately 34.1%), representing the
total loans and borrowings as a percentage of total equity as at the
end of the respective period. The decrease in gearing ratio was mainly
attributable to the increase in total equity as a result of the Share Offer of
the Company on 27 March 2020 and was partially offset by the increase
in interest-bearing bank loans from approximately RM16.4 million as at
31 December 2019 to approximately RM18.5 million as at 31 December
2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The management adopted a prudent investment strategy to utilise
surplus cash to generate stable interest income from low-risk investment
products (the “Portfolio”). The management also monitors the investment
performance of the Portfolio on a regular basis. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Portfolio generated an interest income of RM20,000
(2019: Nil). As at 31 December 2020, the total value of the Portfolio
amounted to RM4.2 million (31 December 2019: Nil), which comprised
our investments in a structured financial product issued by CIMB Islamic
Bank Berhad since 15 October 2020. Save as disclosed herein, the
Group did not hold any significant investment nor did the Group carry out
any material acquisition and disposal during the year ended 31 December
2020.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Issue of Shares and Use of
Proceeds from the Listing” in the Management Discussion and Analysis of
this annual report, the Group does not have other future plans for material
investments and capital assets as at the date of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities since the Listing Date
and up to 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEwmA DR

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant subsequent event was undertaken by the Group after 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 171 employees
(81 December 2019: 181 employees). The total remuneration cost
(including staff costs capitalised as software development expenditure)
amounted to approximately RM10.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: approximately RM8.5 million).

The terms of employment of employees conform to normal commercial
practice. The remuneration of the employees, Directors and senior
management of the Group is set and paid on the basis of the relevant
employees’ qualifications, competence, work performance, industry
experience, relevant market trend and the Group’s operating results etc.
Discretionary bonuses are granted to employees based on merit and in
accordance with industry practice. Other benefits including share options,
retirement benefits, subsidised medical care, pension funds and training
programmes are offered to eligible employees.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company had conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 11
March 2020 (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the section headed “Statutory and General
Information — F. Share Option Scheme” in appendix V to the Prospectus.
No share options have been granted by the Company pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM
THE LISTING

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date with a total of 200,000,000 Shares issued at HK$0.63 each
by way of Share Offer and placing, raising net proceeds of approximately
HK$73.7 million after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses.
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A summary of the expected use of the net proceeds from the Listing is set

LGB FRERARMERHIIOT ¢

out below:
Expected
timeline
for utilisation
Actual of unutilised
amount Actual net proceeds
Percentage Planned utilised up to balance as at as at
of total use of net 31 December 31 December 31 December
net proceeds proceeds 2020 2020 2020
120205
128310
HZ2020% e R EN Y
fEFR SRS FrigE 12A31H 12020 FERIEs
FEAEN B EEAN 1283188 Lk
Epal e BREH BR&R BARE
Business objectives as stated
in the Prospectus HK$'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BRERFMALHEER BEAT BEAT BEAT
(approximate) (approximate) (approximate)
(F49) (49) (49)
To increase technological capability and BNEHENRERAMER
capacity to develop into other market verticall  /FE{THIBHIAES
parallels 88.6% 65.3 - 65.3
~to build a new Tier 3 compliant data centre and —BER—ARAZREEN January 2021 -
upgrade of information technology infrastructure HEEROR December 2021
AREARREMR WNF1BE
76.7% 56.5 - 56.5 20215128
- to strengthen the Group’s technical -METEENRIEE S January 2021 -
operation support system EEN August 2022
021F1BE
6.8% 5.0 - 5.0 2022488
- to expand the software development team of the  — B AZREBERIEFFr & January 2021 -
Group i August 2022
021F1BE
51% 38 - 38 2022488
To expand market presence locally and explore ~ ER &M RN ERFRESE
expansion regionally to capture further market B3R E— S ERHIRNE
share 11.4% 8.4 - 84
~to step up the Group's marketing and sale efforts ~ —MAZEBNEEREE January 2021 -
to reach out to new customers NENERINER August 2022
021F1BE
3.6% 2.7 - 2.7 2022488
—to be used in potential strategic acquisition and -MRAREEERNER January 2021 -
business opportunities [l December 2022
021F1BE
7.8% 5.7 - 5.7 20225128
100% 73.7 - 73.7
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Although the utilisation of the net proceeds had been delayed as a result
of the MCO implemented by Malaysia Government, as at the date of this
annual report, the net proceeds are expected to be applied for purposes
which are consistent with those as disclosed in the section headed
“Future Plans and Proposed Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. As at
31 December 2020, the unutilised portion of the net proceeds has been
deposited in reputable banks in Malaysia and Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, aged 56, was appointed as a Director on 13
June 2018 and re-designated as an Executive Director and appointed as
the chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer with effect from 15
February 2019. Mr. F Ling is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. F Ling co-founded
our Group with Mr. W Ling in February 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing and managing corporate strategic planning and business
development of our Group. He is also the director of all of the companies
of our Group. Prior to co-founding our Group, Mr. F Ling was a director of
Roda Sakti Sdn. Bhd. (principally engaged in logistic services) from May
1996 to March 2010.

Mr. F Ling graduated from University of Kansas, Kansas of the United
States with a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering and a Master
of Business Administration in May 1987 and in May 1989, respectively.

Mr. F Ling is the brother of Mr. W Ling, our Executive Director and the
brother of Mr. S Ling, our Non-Executive Director. Mr. F Ling’s interest
in the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Any of Its Associated Corporations” of
the Directors’ Report in this annual report.

Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, aged 51, was appointed as a Director on 13
June 2018 and re-designated as an Executive Director and appointed
as the Chief Technical Officer with effect from 15 February 2019. Mr. W
Ling is the member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. W Ling co-founded our Group with Mr. F
Ling in February 2000. He is responsible for overseeing and managing
information technology and software development of our Group. He is
also the director of all of the companies of our Group. From 1993 to
1996, Mr. W Ling was an analysis engineer of CAE TECH, INC engaged
in Computer Aided Engineering. From 1992 to 1993, Mr. W Ling was
an engineer of Engineering Mechanics Research Corporation (principally
engaged in the development of computer aided engineering software).

Mr. W Ling obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering
and a Master of Science in Mechanical Engineering from the University
of Kansas, Kansas of the United States in May 1990 and October 1992,
respectively.

Mr. W Ling is the brother of Mr. F Ling, our Executive Director and the
brother of Mr. S Ling, our Non-Executive Director. Mr. W Ling’s interest
in the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or Any of Its Associated Corporations” of
the Directors’ Report in this annual report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan, aged 59, was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director with effect from 15 February 2019. Mr. S Ling is the member
of the Audit Committee. He is responsible for advising on the corporate
and business strategies of our Group. Mr. S Ling has been the Managing
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Compugraphic Forms Sdn. Bhd.
(“Compuforms”) (principally engaged in designing and printing Computer
forms) since 1985. He had been the Executive Director of Rafreq
Maschinenbau Sdn. Bhd. (principally engaged in machinery design &
fabrication) for nine years until July 2018. He has also been the Director of
Rejoice Home Sdn. Bhd. (principally engaged in investment holding) and
Rejoice Homes Ltd (principally engaged in buying and selling of own real
estate) since December 2005 and February 2017, respectively.

Mr. S Ling obtained the Secondary School Honour Graduation Diploma
from High Park School and the Ministry of Education, Ontario in Toronto,
Canada in August 1979.

Mr. S Ling is the brother of Mr. F Ling and Mr. W Ling, the Executive
Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Yan Kit (FE&%F), aged 50, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 11 March 2020. Mr. Lee is the member of
each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lee is responsible for providing independent
judgement on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
key appointments and standard of conduct of our Group. Mr. Lee has
been an independent non-executive director of Landrich Holding Limited
(HKEx: 2132), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since October
2020 and an independent director of Lixiang Education Holding Co,
Ltd.(NASDAQ ticker symbol: LXEH), a company listed on NASDAQ,
since October 2020. In addition to his position as the director of
investor relationship and marketing since February 2020, Mr. Lee was
appointed as the chief operating officer of National Arts Entertainment
and Culture Group Limited (“NA Group”) (HKEx: 8228), a company listed
on GEM operated by the Stock Exchange, in May 2020. He has also
been a director and the chief executive officer of National Arts Travel
Limited (principally engaged in providing travel related products), which
is a subsidiary of NA Group, since February 2019 and June 2018,
respectively. He has also been appointed as the chief executive officer of
National Arts Production & Promotions Limited (a subsidiary of NA Group
and principally engaged in provision of promotional performance services
in Hong Kong) and the director of artiste management of National Arts
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Entertainment Limited (a subsidiary of NA Group and principally engaged
in the provision of management services to artistes in Hong Kong) since
February 2020. Since October 2020, Mr. Lee has also been appointed
as a director of Skyyer MediaX Limited (a subsidiary of NA Group and
principally engaged in the provision of digital marketing, media relations
and public relations services). Mr. Lee was a volunteer director of Sowers
Action (Non-Governmental Organization) from October 2016 to October
2018, and has been one of the vice chairmen of its board of directors
since October 2018 and the volunteer honorary advisor of Sowers Action
Orchestra since February 2019. Mr. Lee is and has been a founding
director of Hong Kong Young Chief Officers’ Association since November
2017, was appointed as a vice chairman of the organising committee
for the 1st Hong Kong Youth Festival in April 2018 and has been the
president of the external affairs committee since December 2018. In June
2020, Mr. Lee was awarded the 5th term Global Outstanding Chinese
Youth from Outstanding Chinese Culture Association. In July 2020, Mr.
Lee was awarded a Certificate of Appreciation from Hong Kong Shue
Yan University for his professional contribution as an Industrial Advisor to
the Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) in Digital Marketing
Programme of the Department of Business Administration.

Mr. Lee has over 20 years of experience in the banking and financial
industry. Mr. Lee has been the director of Hoyan Group International
Limited (“Hoyan Group”) since September 2016. Within Hoyan Group,
he served as the president with respect to the banking, public relations
and consulting services of SBG Holdings Limited (principally engaged in
the operation of beauty medical centres) between September 2016 and
September 2017 and chief marketing officer of HKST Group Holdings
Limited (principally engaged in travel services and education consultancy
business) between September 2016 and May 2018. From September
2006 to July 2016, Mr. Lee held various positions at Dah Sing Bank
Limited (principally engaged in financial services and banking) including
team head, regional head, general manager and project manager. He
also acted as the senior business financial manager and team manager
of Standard Chartered Bank (HK) Limited from June 2004 to September
2006. Between January 2001 and June 2004, he served at DBS (Hong
Kong) Limited, with his last position as a vice president. From April 2000
to January 2001, Mr. Lee worked as an assistant manager of Wing Hang
Bank Limited (currently known as OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited). He
was an officer at Sin Hua Bank Ltd., Hong Kong branch (currently known
as Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited) from March 1996 to April 2000.
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Mr. Lee obtained his Bachelor of Arts from the University of Manitoba
in Canada in May 1993 and a certificate of business management from
Ryerson Polytechnic University in Canada in June 1996. Mr. Lee also
obtained a Master of Science in financial management from the University
of London in the United Kingdom in December 2000 as an external
student.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Lee (i) does not hold any other position
within the Group; and (i) has not held any directorship in any public
company, the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas, in the past three years.

Ms. Eugenia Yang (#87c&), aged 44, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 11 March 2020. Ms. Yang is the
member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Ms. Yang is responsible for providing
independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, key appointments and standard of conduct of our Group.
Ms. Yang was an Independent Non-Executive Director of EFT Solutions
Holdings Ltd (HKEx Stock Code: 8062) (principally engaged in the
provision of electronic fund transfer at point-of-sale solutions), a company
listed on GEM operated by the Stock Exchange, from August 2017 to
September 2019. Ms. Yang was an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Nority International Group Limited (currently known as Wai Chun Bio-
Technology Limited and principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of modified starch and other biochemical products) (HKEx Stock Code:
660), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
August 2005 to May 2006 and an independent non-executive director of
(i) Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited (HKEx Stock Code: 8147)
(principally engaged in the research and development, manufacture and
sale of consumer electronic products) from June 2014 to July 2017,
(i) China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Fairson Holdings Limited and principally engaged in energy related
business) (HKEx Stock Code: 8132) from August 2013 to June 2018 and
(i) Hmvod Limited (HKex Stock Code: 8103) (principally engaged in cyber
security services and solutions) from October 2020 to February 2021,
the shares of these companies are listed on GEM operated by the Stock
Exchange.
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Ms. Yang has been a practicing barrister-at-law in Hong Kong since June
2005. She has been a member of CPA Australia since September 2003
and a member of the HKICPA since July 2005. She has also been a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
(“ICAEW”) since May 2016, a member of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Pakistan since May 2017 and an associate member of
the Cayman Islands Institute of Professional Accountants since February
2021.

Ms. Yang obtained her Bachelor of Commerce, Postgraduate Diploma in
Finance and a Master of Commerce from The University of Melbourne,
Australia, in March 1998, April 1999 and September 2000 respectively,
and a Bachelor of Laws from Monash University, Australia, in March
2003. She also obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the City
University of Hong Kong in July 2004.

Mr. Wong Son Heng, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director on 11 March 2020. Mr. Wong is the chairman
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, and
the member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Wong is responsible
for providing independent judgement on issues of strategy, policy,
performance, accountability, key appointments and standard of conduct
of our Group.

Mr. Wong has over 35 years of experience in the auditing and accounting
industry. Mr. Wong established and has been a partner at his own audit
firm, Wong & Partners, since May 1994. From March 2008 to February
2014, and since rejoining the firm in October 2014, Mr. Wong has been a
partner at an audit firm, CCH, Wong & Partners. From June 1983 to April
1993, Mr. Wong worked in Hew & Tan (principally engaged in audit and
accounting) and his last designation being audit supervisor.

Mr. Wong was an associate of Chartered Association of Accountants
in May 1991 and has been a fellow of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants since May 1996. Mr. Wong has also been a public
accountant of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants since October 1991.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management comprises Mr. F Ling, Mr. W Ling and Mr. Lam
Yin Yam. For biographical details of Mr. F Ling and Mr. W Ling, please
refer to the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. Lam Yin Yam (#AZ£%), aged 35, joined our Group in November
2018 as our group financial controller. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting and budgeting for our Group. Mr. Lam
has over 11 years of experience in the accounting and finance industry.
Prior to joining our Group, he served as the financial controller and the
finance manager of several Hong Kong listed companies from June
2015 to September 2018. From November 2009 to June 2015, Mr. Lam
worked in an international accounting firm in Hong Kong and his last
position was manager in the assurance department.

Mr. Lam has been registered as a certified public accountant of the
Hong Kong Institutes of Certified Public Accountants since March 2013.
Mr. Lam obtained his Bachelor of Business Administration (professional
accountancy) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in December
2009.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lok Yee (fRi4i), ACIS, ACS, was appointed as our
company secretary on 13 November 2018. Ms. Chan has over six years
of experience in the provision of a full range of company secretarial
and compliance services and has held positions in various corporate
secretarial companies in Hong Kong. She has been a manager of
corporate services in Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since
February 2019, and is currently serving a portfolio of clients, including
public listed companies and private companies.

In October 2011, Ms. Chan was awarded her bachelor of arts degree
(with- a major in English studies for the professions and a minor in
translation) from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. In July 2015,
she was admitted to the degree of Master of Science in Professional
Accounting and Corporate Governance from the City University of Hong
Kong. She was admitted as both an associate member of The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and an associate member of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators (now known as The
Chartered Governance Institute) in the United Kingdom in September
2015.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFTHRS

The Board of Directors presents this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

SHARE OFFER AND CAPITALISATION ISSUE

The Company was incorporated on 13 June 2018 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law. A total of
200,000,000 Shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share were
issued at HK$0.63 each by way of share offer on 26 March 2020 and on
27 March 2020, the Company’s Shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Further, the Company allotted and issued a total of
599,999,800 ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at par, to Flash Dragon
Company Limited and Jupiter Rain Company Limited equally on 27 March
2020 by way of capitalisations of the sum of HK$5,999,998 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company pursuant to the
resolutions of the shareholder passed on 11 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of outsourced
document management services and related software applications
and enterprise software solutions in Malaysia and Singapore. Principal
activities of each of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 1 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 which includes an analysis of the Group’s performance
using financial key performance indicators and a discussion on the
Group’s likely future business development, events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year and a description
of the principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are
provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of the Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 74 and 75 of this annual
report.

The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 is set out in

the consolidated statement of financial position on pages 76 and 77 of
this annual report.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information of the Group is set out in Note 31 of the Notes to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RM13.00 million was declared to the then shareholders
of the Company on 12 March 2020 and was paid on 14 March 2020.
Investors who became the shareholders of the Company after the Listing
were not entitled to such dividend.

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

As far as the Company is aware, as at 31 December 2020, there has
been no arrangement under which any Shareholder has waived, or
agreed to waive, any dividends proposed to be distributed for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on the board meeting dated
22 April 2020 that, in recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate and sufficient cash reserves for meeting its
working capital requirements and future growth as well as its Shareholder
value. The Board has the full discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, and any final dividend for a financial year will be
subject to Shareholders’ approval. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall take into account, among other things, the Group’s financial
results, cash flow situation, business conditions and strategies, expected
future operations and earnings, capital requirements and expenditure
plans, interests of shareholders, any restrictions on payment of dividends
and any other factors the Board may consider relevant. Any payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Law and the Articles.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming annual general meeting (‘2021 AGM”), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 23 June 2021
to Monday, 28 June 2021 (both dates inclusive), during which period no
transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and
voting at the 2021 AGM, the unregistered holder of Shares must lodge
all transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 June
2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 12 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 23 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 78 and in Note 23 and Note 24 of the Notes to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report, respectively. As
at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to approximately RM39.2 million, as
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The Company did not have any distributable reserves as
at 31 December 2019.

SHARE AND DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any shares and debentures for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

A total of 200,000,000 Shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share
were issued on 26 March 2020 at HK$0.63 each by way of Share Offer
(“Share Offer”), raising a total of approximately HK$126 million. The net
proceeds raised by the Company from the Share Offer, after deduction
of the underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$73.7 million. For information on the use
of proceeds of the Share Offer, please refer to the section headed “Issue
of Shares and Use of Proceeds From the Listing” in the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Eugenia Yang

(appointed on 11 March 2020)
Mr. Lee Yan Kit

(appointed on 11 March 2020)
Mr. Wong Son Heng

(appointed on 11 March 2020)

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 20 to 25 in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing
Date and shall be terminable by either party by giving not less than one
month’s notice in writing to the other or payment of wages in lieu of
notice.
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The Non-Executive Director has signed a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial term of three years with effect from the Listing Date
and shall be terminable by either party by giving three months’ notice in
writing to the other or payment in lieu of notice.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years with effect
from the Listing Date and shall be terminable by either party by giving one
month’s notice in writing to the other or payment in lieu of notice.

The above appointments are always subject to the provisions of
retirement and rotation of directors under the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service agreement which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Related Party Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’ Report and
in Note 25 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangement and contracts of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director
(or any entity connected with a Director) had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Related Party Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this Directors’ Report and
in Note 25 of the Notes to the consolidated financial statements, no
contracts of significance (including contracts of significance for the
provision of services) between Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and
any Controlling Shareholder of the Company (or any of its subsidiaries)
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with applicable
accounting standards, and details of which are set out in Note 25 of the
Notes to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report. Such
related party transactions include the continuing connected transactions
(fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of Listing Rules, please refer
to the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” for further
details). The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of Listing Rules.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had the following
fully-exempt continuing connected transaction:

Supplier Framework Agreement

On 11 March 2020, the Company entered into a supplier framework
agreement (the “Supplier Framework Agreement”) with Compuforms,
pursuant to which our Group may procure printing materials including
but not limited to paper, letterhead portrait and continuous stationery
(the “Printing Materials”) from Compuforms after the Listing. The term of
the Supplier Framework Agreement commenced on the Listing Date and
shall expire on 31 December 2022, after which it shall be automatically
renewed for successive periods of three years subject to compliance with
the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, provided that it may be
terminated by either party at any time by giving three months’ notice to
the other party. Compuforms is 35% held by Mr. Ling Siew Aun, father of
Mr. F Ling, Mr. W Ling and Mr. S Ling, 23% by Mr. S Ling, and 21% by
each of Mr. F Ling and Mr. W Ling, respectively. Accordingly, Compuforms
is a company which is wholly-owned by Mr. F Ling, Mr. W Ling and Mr.
S Ling together with Mr. Ling Siew Aun, their family member and is an
associate of our Controlling Shareholders, our Executive Directors and our
non-executive Director, and therefore a connected party of our Company
under the Listing Rules.
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As each of the applicable ratios (as defined in the Listing Rules) in
respect of the Supplier Framework Agreement is less than 5% and
the annual caps for each of the three years ended 31 December 2022
are less than HK$3,000,000, the transaction contemplated under the
Supplier Framework Agreement constitute de minimis transactions and
are exempted from the reporting, annual review, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the businesses of the Company were entered into or existed.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company in any of the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), () which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or (i) which were required, as
recorded in the register, to be maintained by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or (jii) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as
follows:
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Approximate

Number of percentage
ordinary Shares of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interests held/interested™ interest®
e BEEEEN B tERE4Y
EEH4 51 #RtE ZaEkixa" Bte
Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang® Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000© 37.5%9
Ling Sheng Hwangt 4@ ZEEAEE R
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung® Interest in controlled corporation 300,000,000© 37.5%9

Ling Sheng Chung#t 4@ A EES
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(1) All the above Shares are held in long position.

) Flash Dragon Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang,
held 300,000,000 Shares. Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang is deemed to be
interested in 300,000,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

) Jupiter Rain Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Chung,
held 300,000,000 Shares. Mr. Ling Sheng Chung is deemed to be interested
in the 300,000,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO.

(4) The calculation is based on the total number of 800,000,000 Shares in issue
as at 31 December 2020.

5) Subsequent to year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, Flash Dragon Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling
Sheng Hwang, sold 60,000,000 Shares on 15 January 2021, representing
7.5% of the issued Shares.

6) Subsequent to year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, Jupiter Rain Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling
Sheng Chung, sold 60,000,000 Shares on 15 January 2021, representing
7.5% of the issued Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had registered any interests or short
position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

(1) UERBRMHHEUGERE
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As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons (not being the Directors or chief executives of the
Company) had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in the register required to

be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

R2020%12H31H MEBSFTA ) AT AL (1
FERNBEEHXTETHAE RARANKS
WABRIR D P EE B IRIRE 5 R SR A EXVED
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of
ordinary Shares

Name Capacity/Nature of interests held/interest® interest®
e HEEEN RERERE 49

L2t ] 810 #ENE ZERsHa" B3O

Flash Dragon Company Limited® Beneficial interest 300,000,0007 37.5%0

Flash Dragon Company Limited® BEmEm

Ms. Chua Siew Chen® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 37.5%

Chua Siew Chenz 6 BB

Jupiter Rain Company Limited® Beneficial interest 300,000,000® 37.5%8®

Jupiter Rain Company Limited® BEmEnm

Ms. Seo Chee Teng® Interest of spouse 300,000,000 37.5%

Seo Chee TengZ 1 BB

Mr. Liao Hui Beneficial interest 51,156,000 6.4%

Notes: BIeE -

(1) All the above Shares are held in long position. (1) MNUEFBERMNDENFEFER-

) Flash Dragon Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, ) Flash Dragon Company Limited (FHLing Sheng
held 300,000,000 Shares Hwang#t 4= 2 & #EA) £55300,000,0008% B2 15

) Ms. Chua Siew Chen, the spouse of Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, is deemed to ) Chua Siew Chen% = (Ling Sheng Hwangst
be interested in the 300,000,000 Shares held by Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, LR RIRE S REBEHRABR A Ling
through his controlled corporation, Flash Dragon Company Limited, pursuant Sheng Hwang’tt 4 %538 H 52 %% EFlash Dragon
to the SFO. Company Limited$s 7 #9300,000,0008& A& 1% H &

BtExme

(4) Jupiter Rain Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, (4) Jupiter Rain Company Limited (FHLing Sheng
held 300,000,000 Shares. Chungft 2 ¥ H) #FH5300,000,0008 i 175

5) Ms. Seo Chee Teng, the spouse of Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, is deemed to 5) Seo Chee TengZ = (Ling Sheng Chung?t4
be interested in the 300,000,000 Shares held by Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, HNEE) REHS RBEKRAEERRLINg
through his controlled corporation, Jupiter Rain Company Limited, pursuant Sheng Chung?t 43548 2 % #2874 ElJupiter Rain
to the SFO. Company Limitedf¥7 #9300,000,0008% & 15 1 #E

AR

(6)  The calculation is based on the total number of 800,000,000 shares inissue  (6) HBREIstEZER2020FE12831BE&HA
as at 31 December 2020. 800,000,000/ B 1T R A 1EH °
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(7) Subsequent to year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, Flash Dragon Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling
Sheng Hwang, sold 60,000,000 Shares on 15 January 2021, representing
7.5% of the issued Shares.

8 Subsequent to year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, Jupiter Rain Company Limited, wholly-owned by Mr. Ling
Sheng Chung, sold 60,000,000 Shares on 15 January 2021, representing
7.5% of the issued Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other
than the Directors or chief executives of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company or any of its Associated Corporations” above had any interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 11
March 2020. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined in
the paragraph below) as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Board is entitled at any
time within the period of 10 years from the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme to make an offer to the below eligible participants (the
“Eligible Participants”) of the Share Option Scheme:

(i) any full-time or part-time Employees, or potential employees,
executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(ii) any Directors (including Executive, Non-Executive and Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and

(i) any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, will contribute or have contributed to our
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

(7) B E2020F12B31HLEFERBREERFR
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The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being
80,000,000 Shares. Subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting,
the Board may:

0} renew this limit at any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of the approval by the Shareholders in general meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the 10% limit to Eligible Participants specially
approved by the Shareholders in general meeting and the Eligible
Participants are specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any further grant
of options to an Eligible Participant in excess of the 1% limit shall be
subject to approval by Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible
Participant and his or her close associates (or his or her associates if such
Eligible Participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.

Each of the grantees to whom an option has been granted under the
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise his/her option in the
manner set out in his/her offer document, provided that such period of
time shall not exceed a period of ten years commencing on the date on
which the option is granted. The exercise of any option shall be subject to
the Shareholders in general meeting approving any necessary increase in
the authorised share capital of the Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for Shares granted pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible Participant shall
pay HK$1.00 to the Company as consideration for the grant on or before
the relevant acceptance date. The subscription price for the Shares under
the Share Option Scheme shall, subject to the adjustments referred to
in the Share Option Scheme, be a price determined by the Board (or its
committee) at its sole discretion and notified to the Participant and shall
be no less than the highest of:
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(@  the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for business
of dealing in securities;

(b)  the average of the official closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately
preceding the date of grant; or

(¢)  the nominal value of a Share.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme in 2020 and there was no share
option scheme available as at 31 December 2019.

For more information on the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Statutory and General Information — F. Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix V to the Prospectus.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, no equity-
linked agreements were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2020.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (‘“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is
registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules.

As required by the Malaysian law, the Group also makes contributions
to the state pension scheme for all qualifying employees in Malaysia, the
Employees Provident Fund (the “EPF”), a social security institution formed
according to the Employees Provident Fund Act 1991 which provides
for the retirement benefits for all local employees. Both the employer
and employee are required to make contributions into the employee’s
individual account in the EPF at a specified percentage of the employee’s
monthly income. No forfeited contribution under this scheme is available
to reduce the contribution payable in future years.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE
COMPANY’S SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and at the end of
the financial year was the Company, or any of its holding companies or
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The emoluments of the Directors were decided by the Board as
recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard to the
Group’s operating results, the individual performance of the Directors
and the comparable market statistics. The Directors’ fees are in line with
market practice. No individual Director should determine his/her own
remuneration.

Emolument package includes, as the case may be, fees, basic salaries,
housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes, discretionary
bonus relating to the financial results of the Group and individual
performance, ad hoc rewards, share options and other competitive fringe
benefits such as medical and life insurances. Details of the emoluments
of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are
set out in Note 9 and Note 10 of the Notes to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates had
engaged in or had any interest in any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to avoid potential conflicts of interests with our Company, our
Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. F Ling, Mr. W Ling, Flash Dragon
Company Limited and Jupiter Rain Company Limited, had entered into a
Deed of non-competition in favour of our Company (for itself and for the
benefits of each other member of our Group) on 11 March 2020, pursuant
to which they have undertaken, among others, not to compete with the
business of the Group.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and written confirmation from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, and are of the view that all the undertakings under the
Deed have been complied with during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the Articles. Such
provisions were in force throughout the year ended 31 December 2020
and are currently in force. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may
be brought against the Directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any rights in relation to
the Shares, they are advised to consult their professional advisers.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman lIslands, although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 20.5% of the total revenue and the
aggregate sales to its five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 54.8% of the total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, purchases from the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 80.2% of the total purchase
cost and the aggregate purchases from its five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 92.4% of the total purchase cost.

Save as the shareholding interest held in Compugraphic Forms Sdn.
Bhd., to the best knowledge of the Directors, none of our Directors, any
of their associates or any Shareholders (which to the knowledge of our
Directors, own more than 5% of the issued Share capital of our Company)
had any interest in any of our five largest suppliers and customers.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group which are stated in the
section headed “Regulatory Overview” of the Prospectus. To the best of
the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during the year ended
31 December 2020, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group. The Company has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. The
following are some of the primary laws and regulations applicable to the
Group in Malaysia:

Risk Management in Technology Policy

In accordance with the policy document issued by Bank Negara Malaysia
on Risk Management in Technology which became effective on 1 January
2020 (the “RMIT”), the Group requires its computer servers to be housed
in a data centre with access to a stable supply of electricity and internet
connectivity that meets the requirements of its financial customers
and Bank Negara Malaysia. The RMIT, which sets out Bank Negara
Malaysia’s expectations regarding the technology and risk management
framework and practice of financial institutions, states that production
data centres and recovery data centres used by financial institutions must
be concurrently maintainable which shall be similar or equivalent to the
international standards of Tier 3 requirements.

To ensure that the Group’s services to financial institution customers
will not be interrupted during the construction of its new data centre
(as disclosed in the Prospectus) and regardless of the length of any
transitional period that may be granted by Bank Negara Malaysia to
respective financial institution customers for compliance with the RMIT
requirements, the Group has discussed and agreed with most of its
financial institution customers that the Group will be allowed, for a period
of no more than 24 months starting from 1 January 2020, to temporarily
lease rack space from a third-party Tier 3 data centre as an one-off
transitional arrangement.
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Laws and Regulations relating to Intellectual
Property

The Group uses various intellectual property rights such as software
copyrights in its daily business. During the year of 2020, the Group
complied with all Malaysian laws and regulations relating to intellectual
property, including the Copyright Act 1987 and the Trademarks Act 2019.
The Group was not subject to, or a party to, any intellectual property
rights infringement claims or litigation.

Laws and Regulations relating to Employment

During the year of 2020, the Group complied with all Malaysian laws
and regulations relating to employment, including the Employment Act
1955, the Employment (Restriction) Act 1968, the Employees Provident
Fund Act 1991, the Employees’ Social Security Act 1969, the Minimum
Wages Order (Amendment) 2018 and Minimum Wages Order 2020, the
Industrial Relations Act 1967 and the Occupational Safety and Health
Act 1994. The Group registered its staff for social insurance and made
all relevant contributions. It did not receive any penalty from the relevant
administrative departments and did not experience any material disputes
with, or claims by, any of its employees.

Laws and Regulations relating to Taxation

During the year of 2020, the Group complied with all Malaysian laws
and regulations relating to taxation, including the Income Tax Act 1967,
Income Tax (Deduction from Remuneration) Rules 1994, Promotion of
Investments Act 1986, Goods and Services Tax 2014 and Service Tax
Act 2018. With a view to strengthening its staff’'s understanding of tax
regulations applicable in Malaysia, the Group has strengthened its finance
department with more staff with accounting and tax expertise to handle
matters in relation to goods and services tax, and its staff is required to
seek advice from the Royal Malaysian Customs Department, other tax
authorities and/or tax consultant whenever there are new tax laws or
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is not subject to any specific environmental laws and
regulations set by the Malaysian Government with respect to the Group’s
operation. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group’s operations do
not have any material adverse impact on the environment, however, the
Group, as an outsourced service provider, is required to use a substantial
amount of paper for the printing of documents such as leaflets, letters,
envelopes and documentation for our customers, which are sent to
clients of our customers for, among other things, marketing purposes
and record keeping. As part of the Group’s commitment to environmental
sustainability, the Group strives to market our digital solutions to
customers and adopt other sustainable printing options such as use of
recycled paper instead of virgin paper, use of energy efficient equipment
and double-sided printing. On the other hand, the Directors believe that
the Group’s software, if accepted and implemented by customers, wil
have a result in the reduction in the use of paper given that we enable
many of the outsourced services to be digitised.

Whilst the Group does not directly produce pollutants that directly affect
the environment, we have implemented internal policies to reduce the
Group’s carbon footprint such as reducing the energy consumption
through:

(@ Installing energy efficient lighting and ensuring lights are switched off
when out of use either manually or through automatic sensors;

(b)  Switching off equipment or using automatic power shutdown
systems; and

(c)  Air cooling (actions include but are not limited to: regular
maintenance of air cooling technologies and optimal timing
controls).

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company to
be prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be
published within three months after the publication of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, SUPPLIERS,
CUSTOMERS AND OTHER STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good relationships
with its employees, suppliers, customers and other stakeholders to meet
its immediate and long-term goals.

Employees: The Group remunerates its employees with wages, bonuses
and other staff benefits. The Group offers on the job training, as well
as encourages staff development by providing financial subsidies to
selected high potential employees for external training or courses. For the
employees of the Group, we have registered our staff for social insurance
and have made relevant contributions in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

Suppliers: The Group’s material suppliers mainly supply paper products
such as paper and envelopes, and printing consumables. The Group also
sources services suppliers for its posting needs and certain printing needs
which cannot be completed in-house. The Group does not enter into any
long-term supply agreements with any suppliers or service providers and
will purchase or engage them on an as required basis.

Customers: The Group’s customers are companies from the banking,
insurance and retail industries which deal with a large volume of end-
customers on a daily basis. The Group’s stable business is based on its
long-term relationship with its major customers and providing them with
outsourced document management services and enterprise software
solutions. As the Group possesses the technical capability, flexibility of
customising its software to meet its customers’ specific needs and ability
to provide accurate and efficient processing, the Group believes that
this has led a majority of its customers to return and continue using its
services by renewing the service contracts when they expire. As such, the
Group engages in regular discussions with its customers to understand
their potential needs so as to develop and customise potential software
solutions for them.

During the year, there were no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, suppliers, customers and/or stakeholders.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Since the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2020, we have complied
with all applicable Code Provisions set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code, except for the following deviation from the Code Provision A.2.1
of the CG Code. For further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices and details of the deviations, please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 47 to 63 of this annual report.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. F Ling holds both positions. Mr. F Ling has
been primarily responsible for corporate strategic planning and overall
business development of our Group since he founded our Group in
the 2000s. Taking into account the continuation of management and
the implementation of our business strategies, Directors (including
Independent Non-Executive Directors) consider it is most suitable for Mr. F
Ling to hold both the positions of the chief executive officer and chairman
of the Board and the existing arrangements are beneficial and in the
interests of our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate by taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2020, there
is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued
Shares as required under the Listing Rules at all times during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 168 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by Ernst & Young PLT who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young PLT as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2021 AGM.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed herein, no significant subsequent event was
undertaken by the Group after 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors confirm that no information is
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Ling Sheng Hwang
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEELRS

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the corporate government
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholder value through
good corporate governance. The Company has developed and
implemented sound corporate governance policies and measures, and
the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the CG Code so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

The Company has complied with all applicable Code Provisions as set out
in the CG Code from the Listing Date during the year, except the deviation
from Code Provision A.2.1.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive should be segregated and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. F Ling holds both positions. Mr.
F Ling has been primarily responsible for corporate strategic planning and
overall business development of our Group since he founded our Group
in the 2000s. Taking into account the continuation of management and
the implementation of our business strategies, our Directors (including
our Independent Non-Executive Directors) consider it is the most suitable
for Mr. F Ling to hold both the positions of the chief executive officer and
chairman of the Board and the existing arrangements are beneficial and in
the interests of our Company and our Shareholders as a whole.

The Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company at
a time when it is appropriate by taking into account the circumstances of
the Group as a whole.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for securities transactions
by Directors of Listed Issues (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by the Directors. Following specific enquires
with all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during the
year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should include
a balanced composition of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Director
and Independent Non-Executive Directors so that the Board has a
strong independent element, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. Currently, the Board comprises six Directors, including two
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Director and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. Details of their composition by category are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Eugenia Yang
Mr. Lee Yan Kit
Mr. Wong Son Heng

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report. Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors, none of
the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship) with any other Directors or
any chief executive.
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Responsibilities

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company. The
Board and Management are charged with promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors, including
Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Board would regularly review the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and whether
he/she has sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. The
Board has general powers for the management and conduct of the
Company’s business, in particularly, decision in all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant operational matters of the Company. The day-to-
day operations and management are delegated by the Board to the
management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board.

Directors’ and Officers Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the
Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas Code Provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Each of the Directors is appointed under a service agreement for a term
of three years. For more details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Directors’ Service Contracts” in the Directors’ report.
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election. Any
additional Directors appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

Accordingly, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and Mr. Wong Son Heng will retire from office
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the 2021
AGM.

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

All Directors, namely Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, Mr. Ling Sheng Chung, Mr.
Ling Sheng Shyan, Ms. Eugenia Yang, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and Mr. Wong
Son Heng, confirmed that they had complied with Code Provision A.6.5
of the Code during the year and up to the date of this annual report, that
all Directors had participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has
arranged an in-house training on the Listing Rules in the form of a seminar
during the year conducted by the Legal Advisor of the Company and
relevant training material has been distributed to all the Directors. All
Directors had attended the in-house training. The training covered topics
which include, directors’ duties, the disclosure obligations under laws of
Hong Kong and other applicable laws, the requirements of disclosable
transactions and connected transactions etc. under the Listing Rules.

Meetings of Board, Committees Meetings and
General Meetings

Code Provision A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of the majority of the Directors, either in
person or through electronic means of communication.

The Company was only listed on 27 March 2020 and since the Listing
Date and up to 31 December 2020, there were two Board meetings held,
at which the Directors approved, among other things, the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the interim results
of the Group for the period ended 30 June 2020.
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Number of meeting(s) attended/number of meeting(s) held since the
Listing Date and up to 31 December 2020 is set out in the below table:

TREH B LHHEAREEE2020FE12831HH
EHEERNE BOTNSEREHK

General Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Director meeting Board Committee Committee Committee
EEHA KREXE EEg BREEE HNEEE RLEEYg
Executive Directors: BITES .
Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang Ling Sheng Hwang#tf  N/A FEA 2/2 N/A FiEH N/A R EH 11
Mr. Ling Sheng Chung Ling Sheng Chung?t:  N/A REA 2/2 N/A T A N/A B 11
Non-Executive Director: FHRTES !
Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan Ling Sheng Shyanst & N/A R 2/2 33 NATER N/A 738
Independent Non-Executive BIIJFHITES :

Directors:

Ms. Eugenia Yang HBreET N/A & 2/2 3/3 N/A R 8 1/
Mr. Lee Yan Kit TR E N/A B 2/2 33 NATEH 1/1
Mr. Wong Son Heng Wong Son Heng#t 4 N/A R 2/2 3/3 N/A 38 11

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

During the year, the Company has three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, which at all times meets the requirement of the Listing Rules
that the number of Independent Non-Executive Directors must represent
at least one-third of the Board and should not be less than three, and that
at least one of the independent Non-Executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the independent non-
executive Directors have been independent and met the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Each of the Board committees operates under defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

We have established our Audit Committee with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code on
11 March 2020. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly
to assist our Board in providing an independent view of the effectiveness
of our financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system, overseeing the audit process and performing other duties and
responsibilities as assigned by our Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Son Heng, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and Ms. Eugenia
Yang, and the non-executive Director, Mr S Ling. Mr. Wong Son Heng is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year, three Audit Committee meeting was held at which
the Audit Committee, among other things () reviewed the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019; (i) reviewed the internal control and risk management
system of the Group; (i) reviewed the interim results of the Group for
the period ended 30 June 2020; and (iv) reviewed the audit planning
memorandum for the year ended 31 December 2020 presented by Ernst
& Young PLT, the Independent auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee also had three meetings with Ernst & Young PLT, the
Independent auditor of the Company.

Remuneration committee

We established our Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
CG Code on 11 March 2020. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are mainly to evaluate the performance of our Directors and
senior management and determine the remuneration package of our
Directors and members of our senior management.
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The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Son Heng, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and
Ms. Eugenia Yang and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. F Ling and
Mr. W Ling. Mr. Wong Son Heng is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Since the Company was only listed on 27 March 2020, no Remuneration
Committee meetings were held during the year.

Since the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held at which
the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration policy for
directors and senior management and the remuneration of directors.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in Note 10 of the Notes to the consolidated

financial statements in this annual report.

The annual remuneration of the senior management of the Group by band
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration of the Senior Management

FNEZEedm =B IERTESE (BWong
Son Heng#ft 4~ =R EERBTRER T) &l
2HITEE (BIF Lingft 4 RW Lingst4E) 488K
Wong Son HengZt& BrRIEEFHFMNEES E
fEo

BN ARABER2020E3827H £/ lHER L
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Number of
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=R
FEEAY

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000

Save as disclosed in this annual report, (i) no remuneration was paid to
our Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join,
or upon joining, our Group; (i) no compensation was paid to, or receivable
by, our Directors or past Directors or the five highest paid individuals
during the year ended 31 December 2020 for the loss of office as director
of any member of our Group or of any other office in connection with the
management of the affairs of any member of our Group; and (i) none of
our Directors waived any emoluments during the same period.

1,500,001 75 £2,000,0007# 7T 1
2,000,001/ 7t %£2,500,00078 7T 2
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Further to the above, no Director or none of the five highest paid
individuals has been paid in cash or shares or otherwise by any person
either to induce him to become, or to qualify him as a Director, or
otherwise for service rendered by him in connection with the promotion or
formation of us save as disclosed in this annual report.

Nomination committee

We have established our Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code on 11 March 2020.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to make
recommendations to our Board on the appointment of our Directors and
members of our senior management.

Our Nomination Committee consists of three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Son Heng, Mr. Lee Yan Kit and Ms. Eugenia
Yang and two Executive Directors, namely Mr. F Ling and Mr. W Ling. Mr.
F Ling is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held to review
the Board composition, assess the independence of independent non-
executive directors, and make recommendation to the Board for Directors
to be re-elected in the 2020 AGM.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which aims to:

° set out the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment
of Directors;

° ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company; and

o ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

Criteria

The Nomination Committee shall consider the following criteria in
evaluating and selecting candidates for directorships:

o character, reputation and integrity;

o qualifications, experience and accomplishments, including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy;

° willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board
member and other directorships and significant commitments;

° requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent by reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

BREARER-—RIZTEAEETHE &
BEFRRERN F& XERBEFR
IR BEER R MR RFFH  RKR
ERRIEEERASEFTTHRNEEKRIR
M iE °

RBEER

EFTORMRELEER (RRBER) HEE !

o HIRBKEEEENENRER;

s HREFGABUEGERATMBNREE-
BERZITIERE &

s HEREFENFEMMERHAEZEAG-

#4

REZEEENERAEREANETESTHE

EZRTHIER

s MR BEKHE

s EBE KRR BEAXRBDEHR
EERBEMNEXRER K -AHK

s REEORRRARHKERETEAEES
PREBIE R EMEFHE R ERKE

e RELHRA EFEFTERBUEEN

RE > Uk2E LHRRBFHARMEILNT
BIHES  REARSRERBIL ;

2020 f£¥Rk  C-Link Squared Limited 55



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEELRS

° Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives adopted by
the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the Board;

° any other perspectives that are appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession plan and where applicable, may be
adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the Nomination
Committee from time to time for nomination of Directors and
succession planning; and

° such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

Nomination Procedures
(A) Appointment of New Director

(i) The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the
proposal on appointment of the new Director, the
biographical information (or relevant details) of such
candidate and evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out in above paragraph of “Criteria” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

(i)  The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered
necessary.

(i) If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company (including but not limited
to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives) and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

(v  The Nomination Committee shall then recommend
appointment of the appropriate candidate for directorship
and the candidate shall provide his/her written consent (a) to
be appointed as a Director, and (b) to the public disclosure
of his/her personal data on any documents or the relevant
websites for the purpose of or in relation to his/her standing
for election as a Director.
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(B)

For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee shall evaluate such candidate
based on the above paragraph of “Criteria” to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship and
where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall make recommendation to the Shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of Director at the general
meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting.

Re-Election of Director at General Meeting

U

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall review the retiring Director’s
overall contribution and service to the Company, including
his/her attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable,
general meetings, and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine
whether the retiring Director continues to meet the criteria as
set out in above paragraph.

the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then
make recommendation to the Shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of the Director at the general meeting.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating
to its recommendation of candidates to stand for re-election
at any general meeting.
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Regular Review

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on:

(i) the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy to ensure that it remains
relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both current
regulatory requirements and good corporate governance practice;
and

(ii) the structure, size and composition of the Board and where
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business
needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out the Code
Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
written employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young PLT is appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid to Ernst
& Young PLT for the audit of the annual financial statements of the Group
are RM420,000 (excluding the expenses on the audit and non-audit
service provided by Ernst & Young PLT related to the Share Offer of the
Company).

The fees charged by Ernst & Young PLT in respect of the non-auditing
services for the year are approximately RM22,000.
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DIRECTORS’ ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results of its operations and cash
flow during the reporting period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. A statement from the independent auditors about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out on pages 71 to 72 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective internal
control and risk management systems in order to safeguard the Group’s
assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control and risk management systems on an annual
basis so as to ensure that internal control and risk management systems
in place are adequate. The Company outsourced its internal audit function
to an external consultant who reports directly to the Board. The internal
audit function primarily carries out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk management and
internal control systems, and reports their findings to the Board on, at
least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has reviewed on
annual basis the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and
operated by the management in compliance with the agreed procedures
and standards. The review covered all material controls,
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. In particular, the Board considered the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programs and budget of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The review was made by discussions with the management of the
Company and the assessment conducted by the Audit Committee. The
Board believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

including

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of
its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules. The
Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure Compliance Policy which
sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers of the
Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be disseminated to
the public in an equal and timely manner. Briefing session is held regularly
for officers to facilitate their understanding and compliance with the policy.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company secretary
of the Company is Ms. Chan Lok Yee. Ms. Chan has over seven years
of experience in the provision of a full range of company secretarial
and compliance services and has held positions in various corporate
secretarial companies in Hong Kong. She has been a manager of
corporate services in Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited since
February 2019, and is currently serving a portfolio of clients, including
public listed companies and private companies. In compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2020. Ms. Chan’s primary contact with the Company is Mr.
Lam Yin Yam, the group financial controller.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal forum for
dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are encouraged to
participate in the proceedings and ask questions about the resolutions
being proposed and the operations of the Group. The Articles allows a
Shareholder entitled to attend and vote to appoint more than one proxy
to attend and vote on behalf of the Shareholder and also provides that a
proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.

Code Provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer should
arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the case of the annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
in the case of all other general meetings at least 10 clear business days
before the meeting. The Company has been in compliance with such
Code Provision.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each Shareholder
meeting.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit,
convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company. The said written requisitions can be addressed to
the Board or the Company Secretary by mail to Room 1901, 19/F, Lee
Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Cay, Hong Kong.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2016
Revision). However, Shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may
follow article 64 of the Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and
procedures of article 64 are set out above. As regards proposing a person
for election as a director, the procedures are available on the website of
the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD AND CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for publicly
available information and provide comments and suggestions to
directors or management of the Company. Such questions, requests and
comments can be addressed to the Company by mail to Room 1901,
19/F, Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or
by email to investor_relations@cgroup.com.my.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings by
mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at 17M Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or by telephone at (852)
2862 8555, who has been appointed by the Company to deal with
Shareholders for share registration and related matters.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables Shareholders to make the most
informed investment decisions. The goal of our communication activities is
to provide a true and fair view of the Company.
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As such, the Company has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and a range of communication channels between itself and its
Shareholders, investors and other stakeholders. These include (i) the
publication of interim and annual reports and/or dispatching circulars,
notices, and other announcements; (i) the annual general meeting and/or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (i) updated and key
information of the Group available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company; (iv) the Company’s website offering communication
channel between the Company and its stakeholders; and (v) the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong serving the Shareholders
in respect of all share registration matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there has not been any change in the constitutional
documents of the Company.

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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Building a better
working world

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
C-Link Squared Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands)

Report on the audit of the financial statements

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements (the “financial
statements”) of C-Link Squared Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2020 of the Group and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set
out on pages 74 to 167.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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INDEPENDENCE AND OTHER ETHICAL
RESPONSIBILITIES

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the By-Laws (on
Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence
Standards) (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
Group for the current financial year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements of the Group as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis of our audit
opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

(1) Capitalisation of software development
expenditure

(Refer to Note 3.2(d) — Key sources of estimation uncertainty
and Note 14 - Intangible assets)

During the current financial year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group capitalised software development expenditure of RM1.4
million as part of its intangible assets.

The Group capitalises eligible development costs upon meeting the
criteria as described in IAS 38. Capitalisation of internally generated
intangible assets under IAS 38 requires management’s judgement
in identifying and measuring the intangible assets.
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We identified this as an area of audit focus due to the significance
of the expenditure capitalised and the judgement, particularly on the
future economic benefits, required to be made by management.

Our audit response:

In addressing this area of audit focus, we performed, amongst

others, the following procedures:

a)

we evaluated accounting policies of the Group on criteria for

capitalisation for compliance with IAS 38;

we obtained an understanding of management’s process and
controls in place on the capitalisation of intangible asset;

we obtained a general understanding on the software

development and the development plan; and

we performed test of details on the staff costs capitalised as

intangible assets by:

° agreeing the development team’s hours incurred to

time charge records; and

° recomputing the staff costs capitalised based on

payroll records.
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Impairment assessment of intangible assets

(Refer to Note 3.2(b) — Key sources of estimation uncertainty
and Note 14 - Intangible assets)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of intangible
assets of the Group amounted to RM4.1 million, representing
15% and 4% of the Group’s total non-current assets and total
assets respectively. The Group is required to perform impairment
assessment for intangible assets with finite useful lives whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired or
more frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

The Group estimated the recoverable amounts of the intangible
assets based on value in use (“VIU"). Estimating the VIU involves
discounting the estimated future cash inflows and outflows
expected to be derived from the intangible asset to its present value
using an appropriate discount rate.

We identified this as an area of audit focus as the VIU determined
using discounted cash flows is complex and involves significant
management judgement and estimates, specifically the key
assumptions on the gross profit margin and discount rate.

Our audit response:

In addressing this area of audit focus, we performed, amongst
others, the following procedures:

a) We obtained an understanding of the methodology adopted
by the management in estimating the VIU and assessed
whether such methodology is reasonable;

b) we evaluated management’s key assumptions on gross profit
margin by taking into consideration of the past and current
contracts as well as current and expected future economic
conditions;
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C) we involved our internal valuation experts in assessing the
discount rate used and whether the discount rate used
reflects the current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the assets is the return that
investors would require if they were to choose an investment
that would generate cash flows of amounts, timing and risk
profile equivalent to those that the entity expects to derive
from the intangible assets;

d) we performed sensitivity analysis on key assumptions that will
significantly affect the recoverable amounts of the intangible
assets; and

e) we evaluated the adequacy of disclosures of key
assumptions to which the outcome of the impairment
assessment is most sensitive.

Revenue from contract with customers

(Refer to Note 2.17 - Significant accounting policies:
Revenue from contracts with customers and Note 4 -
Revenue from contracts with customers)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, revenue from the
provision of outsourced document management services which
amounted to RM74 million, represented about 97% of the Group’s
total revenue. Provision of outsourced document management
services include coding of the format/presentation of the document;
converting raw data into the desired format/presentation; and
delivering the document to the end customers in an agreed mode.
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The Group enters into contracts with customers for the provision
of outsourced document management services. This involves large
volumes of job orders and billings, which consist of individually
low value transactions. In addition, the provision of outsourced
document services involves the performance of a series of works
in phases which revenue is recognised at a point in time when a
performance obligation is satisfied.

We identified revenue on the provision of outsourced document
management services as an area of audit focus due to the above
factors which gave rise to higher risk of material misstatement in the
timing and amount of revenue recognised.

Our audit response:

In addressing this area of audit focus, we performed, amongst
others, the following procedures:

a) we obtained an understanding of the management’s internal
controls over the timing and amount of revenue recognised;

b) we tested the relevant internal controls in place to address
completeness and measurement of revenue recognised;

C) we reviewed samples of contracts between the Group and
its customers and inspected samples of documents which
evidenced the rendering of services to customers;

d) using data analytics, we performed correlation analysis
between revenue, trade receivables and cash and bank and
balances;

e) we tested samples of documents to establish whether
transactions were recorded in the correct accounting period;
and

f) we reviewed the appropriateness of journal entries
recognised to accrue for revenue for completed job orders
where billings have not been issued at the period-end.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements of the Group and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Group does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Group, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements of the Group or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The directors are also responsible for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate
the Group to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the Group for the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.
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OTHER MATTERS

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other
person for the content of this report.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hoh, Yoon Hoong.

Ernst & Young PLT
202006000008 (LLP0022760-LCA) & AF 0039
Chartered Accountants

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
30 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

n\7|' A j:ﬂﬁll‘li—%

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20195
1818E 1A1EE
2020 20194
12A31H 12H31H
Group Notes RM’000 RM’000
RER Ffi 5 TER LEE
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEEPIIEHNKGE 4 76,719 71,526
Cost of sales THE A (57,534) (41,904)
Gross profit EH 19,185 29,622
Other income and gains HAUBA Wz 5 1,677 566
Administrative expenses THERFX (19,508) (10,258)
Finance costs BB A A 6 (650) (915)
Profit before tax AR A F 7 704 19,015
Income tax expense T8 11 (5,769) (5,962)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (F518) EH (5,065) 13,053
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the AT HEHE AL
Company (#518) & (5,065) 13,053
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to AT A AEEESR
owners of the Company: (&) B .
— Basic and diluted (RM sen) —BEAREE (SFEED) 8 (0.67) 2.18
The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an B8 M & 51U 58 K AR TE M 53 48 Bl A F5 3R R AU 4B AR

integral part of the financial statements.

BB e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FerHlER

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
1B18ZE 1B1BZE
20205 20194
12H31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
wER F<EH TLEH
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (F58) HF) (5,065) 13,053
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEsia
Item that may be reclassified to profit REBEERR G E 7 EE R m
or loss in subsequent periods: EE
Exchange differences on translation of ME B EBELNIERZRE
foreign operations (470) -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FREMEZEER (NRRIE)
net of tax (470) -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income Frz2m (§EE) WE4EE
for the year (5,535) 13,053
Total comprehensive (loss)/income EATHEE AEEERE (518
attributable to owners of the Company IR 4EEE (5,535) 13,053
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MBI

As at 31 December 2020 F2020%F12531H

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
12H31H 128318
Group Notes RM’000 RM’000
wEE Fff s TER ER
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB RRE 12 8,595 9,725
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13 3,433 3,362
Intangible assets BEEE 14 4,109 3,431
Prepayments SEANEOE] 15 11,647 =
27,784 16,518
Current assets REMEE
Trade receivables B 5 RIS 15 27,179 19,229
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables T8 FRIE ~ ¥4 K ELth fE U318 15 5,773 8,390
Contract asset BHEE 16 378 =
Income tax recoverable A [EIFR1ER 176 =
Financial asset at fair value through BATFEFABRNSHEE
profit or loss 17 4,200 S
Cash and bank balances RE R IRITAER 18 40,831 26,097
78,537 53,716
Total assets BERE 106,321 70,234
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ke
Current liabilities BiEE=RE
Trade payables B 5 B RIE 19 1,210 1,193
Other payables and accruals HMEI R IB R ET E A 19 2,188 2,161
Contract liability aHNEE 16 739 =
Income tax payable FE(SPRISHR 1,602 1,603
Loans and borrowings B ER 20 6,710 2,118
Lease liabilities HEaRE 21 192 71
12,641 7,146
Net current assets RENEEREE 65,896 46,570
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mREMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2020 F2020%F12531H

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20204 20194

12H31H 12H31H

Group Notes RM’000 RM’000

wER Fff = TER ER
Non-current liabilities EREERE

Deferred tax liabilities FERIEE R 22 843 592

Loans and borrowings B fER 20 11,760 14,270

Lease liabilities HEaE 21 160 234

12,763 15,096

Total liabilities B &M 25,404 22,242

Net assets BEEERE 80,917 47,992

Equity L

Share capital [N 23(a) 4,233 =

Reserves i 76,684 47,992

Total equity HEEMAER 80,917 47,992

Total equity and liabilities EnKkAaBELE 106,321 70,234

Ling Sheng Hwang
Director

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an

integral part of the financial statements.

Ling Sheng Chung

Director

EF
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n\7|- | Eﬁﬁ@]%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12931 H IFFE

Exchange
Share Share Merger fluctuation
capital premium reserve reserve Retained
(Note 23a) (Note 23b) (Note 24a) (Note 24b) earnings  Total equity
A RRAD (B aftitE EXRDRE
(Mts¥23a) (Pft5%23b) (fzk24a) (HzE24b) RERA S
Notes RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Wit 5E FLE FLE FeE L5 FLE TeE
At 1 January 2019 120191818 - - 4,800 - 30,139 34,939
Profit for the year FERA - - - - 13,063 13,063
Other comprehensive income FEAEM2EKE
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of HMESIEBRHNERER
foreign operations - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FEZENABE:
for the year: = = = = 13,053 13,053
At 31 December 2019 #2019512H31H - - 4,800 - 43,192 47,992
At 1 January 2020 1®2020FE1818 - - 4,800 - 43,192 47.992
Loss for the year EERR - - - - (5,065) (5,069)
Other comprehensive loss FEHEMRESE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation of BEBIEBRNERER
foreign operations - - - (470) - (470)
Total comprehensive loss FELXEBBER:
for the year: - - - (470) (5,065) (5,635)
Capitalisation Issue BRMEET 33(0) 3,175 (3,175) = = = =
Issue of new shares BITIR 33(c) 1,058 65,609 - - - 66,667
Share issue expenses e - (15,207) - - = (15,207)
Dividend Be 30 - - - - (13,000 (13,000
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 4,233 47,207 4,800 (470) 25,126 80,017
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7|-\ IE%/}".E%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12/531H IFFZ

2020 2019
20205 20195
Group RM'000 RM'000
wER FLEH TLEH
Cash flows from operating activities REEFERSRERE
Profit before tax BRI AR F 704 19,015
Adjustments for: MTFIBEEHAE -
Interest income FEUWA (604) (468)
Interest expense FERX 607 878
Amortisation of transaction costs R 5 R A i 20 20
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGNE 23 17
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)% i = K & T EE 1,819 1,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 238 107
Allowance for unutilised leave RIBE B HR 1 76 =
Bad debts written off EHIEAR
— trade receivables - B EIEIE 96 =
— other receivables - g EIE 224 =
Unrealised losses in foreign currency FREIFINEETIE 144 -
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade B Z FEWFIBTERREEE1E
receivables B 455 170
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESH 678 677
Operating cash flows before changes in working ZEB&EHAIKSRERE
capital 4,480 22,385
Changes in working capital: SRS EE
Trade receivables B 5 N IE (8,496) (1,102)
Other receivables Hh e sIa (13,924) (1,985)
Contract asset BHEE (378) =
Trade payables B EARIE 17 96
Other payables HhpETIA (39) (1,504)
Contract liabilities BHEaRE 739 =
Amounts due from/to related parties FEUS  FE(T RAE 75 =B 3,883 (518)
Cash flows (used in)/generated from operations & & &8 (FrA) /FriSIRE&RE (13,718) 17,372
Tax paid, net of tax refunded BRI NRERMAR (5,695) (5,520)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from &ESES) (FRF) FhBIRe
operating activities TMEFER (19,413) 11,852
Cash flows from investing activities KREESMEBRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BB BB K& 1E (689) (283)
Payments for software development R EE R ST TR
expenditure (1,356) (1,279)
Interest received BUsH B 604 468
Investment in financial asset at Rz AFEFAERDN
fair value through profit or loss SPRHEENKE (4,200) =
(Placement)/withdrawal of fixed deposit (FE8) /RIEHRER (24,444) 5
Net cash flows used in investing activities CE R ARESREFE (30,085) (1,089)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12931 H IFFE

2020 2019
20205 20195
Group RM'000 RM'000
wER FoEH TLER
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHFRERERE
Dividend paid BARE (13,000) -
Gross proceeds from the share offer fR1D S E PSR IBALEE 66,667 -
Payment of listing expenses in relation to BT ERERN
issuance of new ordinary shares THERM (15,207) =
Drawdown of borrowing IREVERR 4,314 -
Interest paid BAFE (632) (890)
Repayment of term loan BETHER (2,252) (2,038)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREAR (244) (84)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) REEEFRS (FTA)
financing activities REmEFEE 39,646 (3,012)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash IRERIBEZEY GAL)
equivalents EhNFEE (9,852) 7,751
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRERAEEEY
beginning of the year 26,097 18,346
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EREiE)F L350
net 283 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of FEXRREKIIREZEY
the year (Note 18) (FffzE18) 16,528 26,097

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an

integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|'\ j- ?ﬂ iﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

C-Link Squared Limited. (the “Company”) is an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at No. 1,
Persiaran Sungai Buloh, Taman Industri Sungai Buloh, 47810 Kota
Damansara, Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia.

The registered office of the Company is located at Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands.

On 27 March 2020, the shares of the Company were listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s principal subsidiaries, Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. and
Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. (‘the Companies”), were engaged
in the provision of outsourced data and document management
services in Malaysia. There have been no significant changes in the
nature of the principal activities during the financial year.

1.

AT ER
C-Link Squared Limited. (T2 8) &
—%EA%Eﬁ%%‘EHﬂ)ﬁIETJ BEHEER
RE o RABWEEE EHENMITNo. 1,
Persiaran Sungai Buloh, Taman Industri
Sungai Buloh, 47810 Kota Damansara,
Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan,
Malaysia °

KRB EE M S R AL Windward 3,
Regatta Office Park, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

FR2020F3827H » K AR KM ES B
ERGFRERAT EMR LT

KRBINEFEFHAREER - AN AFH
T E M E/AFCoeus Systems Sdn. Bhd.
KzCompugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. (1525
RE) R ERAEREREINIBER KX
HEERB RV BRFER > TEEFHN
HE W EEREH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1.

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct and indirect
interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited liability
companies (or, if incorporated outside Malaysia, have substantially
similar characteristics to a private company incorporated in
Malaysia), the particulars of which are set out below:

REEH @

RABRESEE ZABREWBABER
BEEkEZERED MAEWBARNERM
ABRRT (SfH 5 R R b aE AL
3o AlER SR BRI MBI FAA
ANERBAUNKE) - BREFBHIW

82

B
Issued Effective
Place and date of ordinary proportion
incorporation and share of ownership
Company name place of operations capital interest Principal activities
= 1 PR 323t 2 K B HA BT BIRFRA
RELTE DA & 2 3t 2 BiEkR A RS FEEF
%
Held by the Company:
BERGHFE -
Coeus Systems (BVI) Limited ** BVI 19 June 2018 UsD100 100 Investment holding
Coeus Systems (BVI) Limited ** HEBERELES 10037t 100 #®EER
2018%F6H19H
Compugraphic Media (BVI) BVI 19 June 2018 USD100 100 Investment holding
Limited **
Compugraphic Media (BVI) HBERLHE 100%E 7T 100 KEZER
Limited ** 2018%6519H
C-Link Squared Limited ** BVI 16 August 2018 USD100 100 Investment holding
C-Link Squared Limited ** HBRZES 10037t 100 BEER
20184F8H16H
Core Squared Limited ** BVI 25 September USD100 100 Investment holding
2020
Core Squared Limited ** HBEBRLHE 100%E 7T 100 KEZER
2020498 25H
Held by Coeus Systems (BVI) Limited:
HiCoeus Systems (BVI) LimitediF & :
Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 12 July 2002 RM2,400,000 100 Outsourced data and
(“Coeus System”) * document management
services
Coeus Systems Sdn. Bhd. B 2,400,000% F 4% 100 SIMHBIE R X HER
(FCoeus System ) * 200278128 AR5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. AFER@®
Issued Effective
Place and date of ordinary proportion
incorporation and share of ownership
Company name place of operations capital interest Principal activities
+E B FR ST 0B e 2 B L
YNSIECY V93 3iub BB A RIS FEES
%
Held by Compugraphic Media (BVI) Limited:
HiCompugraphic Media (BVI) Limitedi¥%
Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 10 February RM2,400,000 100 Outsourced data and
(“Compugraphic Media”) * 2000 document management
services
Compugraphic Media Sdn. Bhd. &2 F85a 2,400,000% 4% 100 MBI R X HEE
(F'Compugraphic Media 1) * 200022 10H AR
Held by C-Link Squared Limited:
HIC-Link Squared Limited#¥%& *
C-Link Squared Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia 20 June 2018 RM2 100 Rendering of software
(“C-Link Malaysia”) * services
C-Link Squared Sdn. Bhd. Bk 25 TR 100 $2{HEERRTS
(F'C-Link Malaysia J) * 20184F6H20H
Held by Core Squared Limited:
HiCore Squared Limited#5%&
Core Squared Limited ("Core  Hong Kong 12 HK$100 100 Rendering of software
Squared Hong Kong’) October 2020 services
Core Squared Limited (TCore &% 10038 7T 100 IR{HEREEERTS
Squared Hong Kong 1) *** 20024E10812H
* The statutory financial statements of these entities for the year * RIBEERATHEERRBEENRNN

ended 31 December 2019 prepared under Malaysian Private Entities
Reporting Standard were audited by CM Chin & Co, approved auditor
under the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The statutory financial
statements of these entities for the year ended 31 December 2020
are not available at the date of this financial statements.

Hk

No audited financial statements have been prepared for these entities
since their incorporation as these entities were not subject to any
statutory audit requirements under the relevant rules and regulations
in its jurisdiction of incorporation.

e The entity was incorporated during the year hence statutory financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 was not required.

The financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors of the Company in accordance with a
resolution of the Directors on 30 March 2021.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.

POLICIES

2.1

2.2

84

Basis of preparation 2.1

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except as disclosed in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia
(‘RM”™) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand,
except when otherwise indicated.

Changes in accounting policies 22

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those
of the previous financial year, except for the following

amendments to IFRS which became effective as of 1 January
2020.

Conceptual Framework: Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a Business
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7: Interest Rate

Benchmark Reform

The Group has also early adopted Amendments to IFRS
16 Leases: COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions as of 1
January 2020.

The adoption of the above amendments did not have any
effect on the financial performance or position of the Group.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGHEERHSE @)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.3. Standards issued but not yet effective 23. BEMERKERBIZER
The standards that are issued but not yet effective up to TXHREBREAEETHFRREM
the date of issuance of the Group’s financial statements are Z HEBMEHRERZER -

disclosed below.

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

or after
BWIUATHESEZ%E
Description it BHIRHVFE E R £
Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 [BIFREAF5 R & 255058 B G 51 %8 1 January 2021
and IFRS 16: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 55395 « B FRBA TS ¥R &5 £ B 575 ~ 20211818
(Phase 2) PR B 75 3R 25 2E B S5 457 K [ PR B 75 3R
HERFE165E (B4 ( FIREELE
(5B2B5ER)
Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the EPRE 53R 5 R HE3TE (BRI ) - B175 1 January 2022
Conceptual Framework REBSEZRNIZLR 2022%181H
Amendments to IAS 16: Property, Plant and EPRE st 2ER]F 1638 (BFT ) - M 1 January 2022
Equipment (Proceeds before Intended Use) B Rt (BE BiRE] 2 PT1SFRIE) 2022%181H
Amendments to IAS 37: Provisions, Contingent EIFE & 5t #BI55375% (IE5T4) @ B~ 1 January 2022
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (Onerous REBERIAREE BEEMESN-BT 2022F181H
Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract) BHIBIRLA)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3. Standards issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Description i

EEGTHREE (&

23. BREMERKERER (B)

Effective for

annual periods
beginning on

or after
RUTHESZE
I FEEHRER

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018 - 2020
Cycle:
— Amendments to IFRS 1: First Time Adoption

FEE !

- BRI B S ERIE15E (BFT 40 ¢

R BA 75 3R &5 2 8120185 £ 2020 18 HA

1 January 2022

of International Financial Reporting BRI E MR A 7SR S 22 R (M /8 202251818
Standard (Subsidiary as A First-time NBABETIRNE)
Adopter)

- Amendments to IFRS 9: Financial - EPR B 3R 5 R O (BRI - 1 January 2022
Instruments (Fees in the 10 percent’ Test EHMTAE BIEEISHEEDN 2022%181H
for Derecognition of Financial Liabilities) 10%: A RV E )

— Amendments to IAS 41: Agriculture (Taxation - BIPE & st# B $E4158 (1E5T ) © B2 1 January 2022
in Fair Value Measurements) (A FEAHENRE) 2022F181H

IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts BRI BRESENFEI7 - REEN 1 January 2023

2023%F181H

Amendments to IAS 1: Presentation of Financial B & 5285158 (IB574%) @ BAF#RkE 1 January 2023
Statements (Classification of Liabilities as W27 (aBEIERRENIERE) 2023%181H
Current or Non-current)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or  BIFE R #53R & 2 ) 551058 R B PR & 512 Deferred
Contribution of Assets between an Investor BUZE285E (IB5]4A) [ REEHREKE IRIE
and its Associate or Joint Venture NEHEERBDZENEEREDR

AE

The Group intends to adopt these standards when they
become effective. The directors do not anticipate that the
application of these standards and amendments will have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHREBE®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Basis of consolidation 24 ZEEE
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial REVBERREELAEENREKB
statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at the NEINFRE BN R

reporting date.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, EREEH2EREHRERNA

to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and oI AERRIZE BT LURAE

has the ability to affect those returns through its power over BEHNEHRNENIZE u% =30

the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee ff, WE BIEEEGIE -AiEmMS &

and only if, the Group has: BEEXEREE TIEIE 5%7’7' 7

EHREHR

. power over the investee (.., existing rights that give it . HEBEHRNEND BMRFH
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the EREELEHKREMREE
investee) HBE N RIR B #F))

. exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its . 2HERLEHREBEENA
involvement with the investee %4 0] 3R & b S A A

o the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its o ﬁ FEHEEHRNEDUE
returns BHPBIIRMFES

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting —RIERT > B—EEE BZHK

rights results in control. To support this presumption and EREF IR AFE LT R IL

when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or HAEREBLVDREEHRAZSHY

similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant WERBUEF R B AER

facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power RFEHEEHEHREH R

over an investee, including: NEgEE—VIHBEERER

2k

. the contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote . HEBEHREMBRERFEA
holders of the investee N&EHZ2H

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements . Hi 54 2P E £ H#EF]

. the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights . AEBNKERKRBERE

T
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. THEEREE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 24 ZEEE®B

88

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation
of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI") are attributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while
any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. Any
investment retained is recognised at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FHEEREE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Business combination 25 EFZGH

The financial statements of the Group comprise the
financial statements of subsidiaries as at the reporting
date. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in
the preparation of the combined financial statements are
prepared using the same reporting date.

Subsidiaries are those corporations, partnerships or other
entities (including special purpose entities) in which the
Group has power to exercise control over the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities,
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity.

Subsidiaries are combined from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be combined until the date that such control ceases.

Under the pooling of interest method, the results of the
subsidiary are presented as if the combination had been
effected throughout the current and previous financial
years. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities are
reflected at their carrying amounts from the perspective of the
common control shareholders. Any difference between the
consideration paid and the equity of the “acquired” entity is
reflected within equity as merger reserve.

All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on combination in full.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. THEEREE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 ME -BERSE

90

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially
recorded at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
in intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively.
Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost
is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated based on the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Factory building
TREF

Shop lot

Bl
Renovation of building
1B

Plant and machinery
B B e 1 ik
Computer and software
B R MY

Motor vehicles

AE

Furniture and fittings
REREE

Office equipment

NS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

BMBHwRMIEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets under construction included in property, plant and
equipment are not depreciated as these assets are not yet
available for use.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method
are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or
loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over
the estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the
asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss.

2.6

2.7
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if the events and
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired either individually or at the cash-generating unit
level. Such intangible assets are not amortised.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at
the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss.

Software development expenditure

Software development expenditure comprises purchased
software, manpower and related overhead incurred directly
in the development of computer software. Software
development expenditures are recognised as an intangible
asset when the Group can demonstrate:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the
asset;
° how the asset will generate future economic benefits;

° the availability of resources to complete the asset;

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
development; and

° the ability to use the intangible asset generated.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets (Continued)
Software development expenditure (Continued)

Following initial recognition of the software development
expenditure as an asset, the asset is carried at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation of the asset begins when development
is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised
over the period of expected future benefit at the principal
annual amortisation rate of 20%. Amortisation is recorded in
cost of sales. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annually.

Software development expenditures which are not or have
ceased to be commercially viable are written off.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.
Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment.

2.7

2.8

S EERME @

BREE @
MBI (8

ENPBIXNGRERZIDEE
B EERMTHRTHBE KRR
BMEBREIR -BENBHENHRE
TR EEERHERRRIG 2R
A& F E I E20%00 TE B R 2R A
mmHAR Y o SN ST A E R A o 1Y
RSB ~EBSEHEEET
BRI

FEBMHERIAIBEAHER
TR

EREEE
FEBRRBEERBAN BIERE
ERMERZ ) BRAEHAEEE-
EREEERMABEMRITE
RBEBENE UAEaERN
EREFRFEFLHRAB - EARE
ENNEBECRINEEERES
BEBEENVBERMS UK
fERAME B RIS Z AT fEH AR B /R
BEWENERBAERE FRIFLR
SRS ERETHERGEREIE
Eﬁ;’éﬁ’ﬂ}z&ﬁ%’EEUEEEm B9
ﬁ)ﬂ%iﬁéﬁﬁl%?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁfﬁ,ﬁﬂ&
MEHRNBRIEE NI BEGESHRT
E-EREEERTLURE.

2020 f£¥Rk  C-Link Squared Limited 93



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. THEEREE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.9 Lease liabilities 29 HEAE

94

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payment to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonable certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change
in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FHEEREE @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets 2.10 IEERE ERE (&)

(Continued)

The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted
at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other
available fair value indicators.

The value in use calculation is based on a Discounted
Cash Flows (“DCF”) model. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. The cash flows are derived from the
budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant
future investments that will enhance the performance of the
CGU being tested. For longer periods, a long-term growth
rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. The recoverable amount is sensitive to
the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes.

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGHEBRME®

POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

210 JEERAE ER(E (@)

96

(Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the or CGUs recoverable amount.
A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition

and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(@

Financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under
IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
OClI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
instrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEGHHEEHME @
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition 211 ERMTAR VP HEREES
and subsequent measurement (Continued) ==l E)

98

(@

Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in four categories:

(1)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

(2)  Financial assets at fair value through OCI with
recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt
instruments)

(8)  Financial assets designated at fair value through
OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments)

(4)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The
Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if
both of the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows

and

° The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest (EIR) method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'\

BMBHwRMIEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

@M

Financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost includes
trade and other receivables.

The Group's assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss includes investments in money market fund.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

° The rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

or

. The Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed
an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party
under a arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. THEEREE @

POLICIES (Continued)
2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition

211 ST E-VTHEIBREE

100

and subsequent measurement (Continued) g€
()  Financial assets (Continued) i) =REEGB
Derecognition (Continued) AR IEFESR (45)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to
what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

@M

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12 month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for
credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

For trade and other receivables, the Group applies a
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 365 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)
(i) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Loan and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Group.
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or
loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing
loans and borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial instruments —initial recognition
and subsequent measurement (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

2.12 Foreign currency

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s financial statements are presented in
Ringgit Malaysia (RM). The Company’s functional
currency is Hong Kong Dollar (HKD), i.e., the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it
operates. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Foreign currency (Continued)

(b)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the
respective functional currencies of the entities within
the Group and are recorded on initial recognition in the
functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies that are measured at historical
cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair
value are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on translating monetary items at the
reporting date are recognised in profit or loss except
for exchange differences arising on monetary items
that form part of the Group’s operations, which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under foreign currency translation reserve
in equity.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for the differences
arising on the translation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from
such non-monetary items are also recognised directly
in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEGTHHEEHSE®
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents 213 REKRIIREEEY

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

2.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount of the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre tax rate that reflects, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Fair value measurement

S EERME @

215 AF{EHE

106

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at
each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

FEEREREAMBERATEFE
ERIAe

ATEATHE2EENGEAHE
BEFRZPHEEERFREIEE
BERZMINERE A TEFEK
?Jfﬁﬂxux%&’iﬁjg‘ﬁ?}u%%faﬁ’]

. in the principal market for the asset or liability; or . REEXABEIEMHZESE;
519
. in the absence of a principal market, in the most . (EBEFEMBBERN TEE

advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Fair value measurement (Continued)

S EERME @

215 AFEFE @)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

R B|RRSTEHIRE R FEHFR
BEEEREE ORBEHATES
EEEMEBEANRBERAA
BEETERTEERARNETD
£

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active . F1R—HEEEREERE
markets for identical assets or liabilities. BB RE CREKHE) o

—HRAFEFEMER
Ejﬁﬂ’ﬂ?éﬁ%? (EEmER &
RRERBABEBNGEES Ao

° Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the o
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the . FIR—HAFEHAEMS B
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value BEANAORRRHEE R
measurement is unobservable. ABENGBESE-

THHERAEEERINEERE
B AEERSREHRENGE
DEERHATEFEERME B
ERNRBERBARE > UEE
NTEBRASES-

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

MATEREMS AEERESR

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has

determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the EXBENME - FEARRUKR
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and T AFEEAEETEEREEN
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The BRI - AEBRER T ARFE

methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of 7575 R R E MY ET26 R iR 25 o
the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in Note 26.

2020 f£¥Rk  C-Link Squared Limited 107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEGTHHEEHNE®
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Employee benefits 2.16 EE@&F

108

(a) Short-term benefits (a) FEHEAREF
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security IE #FHe TEARTEZRE
contributions are recognised as an expenses in the HARRAEBRREESIRLEERE
reporting period in which the associated services RFNERSIAEER Az
are rendered by employees of the Group. Short EEEBRMENRBIEMESR
term accumulating compensated absences such as TR Fr R R BY R BF - BU R A%
paid annual leave are recognised when services are THAR ST FRER (Bl
rendered by employees that increase their entitiement FRR) HHEFFERHE KRR
to future compensated absences. Short term non- (B R) RIREAE £
accumulating compensated absences such as sick 530
and medical leave are recognised when the absences
oceur.

(b) Defined contribution plans (b) EERMHEREE
As required by law, companies in Malaysia contribute RIFERRE BRATENA
to the state pension scheme, the Employees Provident AARNERENKRETEES
Fund (“EPF”). Such contributions are recognised as riEE (MEELEE)) (FHE
an expense in the profit or loss as incurred. Once the R ZERTNELERNIER
contributions have been paid, the Group has no further NERARZ — B UZE
payment obligations. B REBAEE TR

£i5o
(c) Employee leave entitlement (c) EERE={EHN

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is involved in the business of providing outsourced
data and document management services. Revenue from

contracts with customers is recognised when control of

the goods or services is transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Group has generally concluded that it is the
principal in its revenue arrangements.

(a)

Outsourced document management services

The Group enters into contracts with customers for
the provision of outsourced document management
services and works are performed upon receipt of
job orders from the customers, typically on a monthly
basis. Outsourced document management services
include coding of the format/presentation of the
document; converting raw data into the desired format/
presentation; and delivering the document to the end-
customers in an agreed mode.

Such contracts comprise a single performance
obligation because the Group’s promise to transfer the
services to the customer is not separately identifiable
as each service within the series is in fact a phase
within the outsourced document management services
that are highly interdependent and highly interrelated
to each other in producing an integrated/combined
output to the customer, i.e., to deliver the document in
the desired format to its customers with a copy kept
as record. Besides, the Group has not and will not
provide part of the services as the customer is not likely
to engage multiple parties to perform different phases
of the outsourced document management services
as each phase is highly interdependent and highly
interrelated with each other.

S EERME @

217 REER RIS T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2.

110

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Outsourced document management services
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the provision of
outsourced document management services at a point
in time because the customer will only receive and
consume the benefits until the document is delivered to

its customers.

Enterprise software solutions

@

(i)

Customised software

The Group provides customised software which
is significantly modified to suit the requirements
of a customer. The modification, testing and
installation of the software are carried out in the
customers computer system.

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of customised software over time,
using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group.

Electronic document warehouse services

The Group enters into contracts with customers
for the provision of electronic document
warehouse services which include:

- Storing customers’ document in electronic
document warehouse

- Enabling unlimited direct document
retrieval by customers
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b) Enterprise software solutions (Continued)

(ij)  Electronic document warehouse services
(Continued)

Such contracts comprise of a single
performance obligation because the Group’s
promise to store and enable direct document
retrieval to the customer is not separately
identifiable as they are highly interdependent and
highly interrelated to each other, i.e., the Group
will not be able to provide the direct document
retrieval service without having to provide the
document storage services.

The Group recognises revenue from the
provision of electronic document warehouse
services over time because the customers
receive and consume the benefits as and when
the Group provides the access to the electronic
document warehouse over time.

(c) Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in
exchange for services transferred to the customer.
If the Group performs by transferring services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2.

112

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the
consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer services
to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the
customer, a contract liability is recognised when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract.

2.18 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured

at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to

the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in

equity is recognised in equity and not in the profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEHEREE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Taxes (Continued) 2.18 1118 (@)
Deferred tax IRIEFRIA

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on
temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised except:

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. THEEREE @

POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Taxes (Continued) 2.18 MRIE (@)

114

Deferred tax (Continued)

- in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax
assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEHEREE @
POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Taxes (Continued) 2,18 I8 (&)
Sales tax SHEM

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of sales tax, except:

° when the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority,
in which case, the sales tax is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the
expense item, as applicable; and

° receivables and payables that are stated with the
amount of sales tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable
to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or
payables in the statement of financial position.

Goods and Service Tax (“GST”)

The net amount of GST being the difference between output
and input of GST, payable to or receivable from the respective
authorities at the reporting date, is included in trade and other
payables or trade and other receivables in the statement of
financial position.

2.19 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statements of
financial position based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or
consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in the normal operating
cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j- ?ﬂ ﬁﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EEEHREBE®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.21 Contingencies 221 HAE
A contingent liability is: ﬁ%%fﬁ% 5
) A possible obligation that arises from past events 0] BESGMAESIRZE
and whose existence will be confirmed only by EE MEESENEEBRF
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more —EHRLEAREETAEEH
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of BHIZAEERLEHRS
the Group; or BAESERE ; I
(i) A present obligation that arises from past events but is (i) BESHSIRZARERE
not recognised because: EBRUTERERMmMAS R :
. it is not probable that an outflow of resources . EERHAEELEN A
embodying economic benefits will be required to ZERUBITEEN
settle the obligation; or AEMER K 5 B
. the amount of the obligation cannot be . ERXEHEAEEHAISE
measured with sufficient reliability. HEtE o
A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past RAEBEARBETEHFMAIFESIE
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the ZEE MIELEEENGFEBRRT
occurrence or non-occurrence of uncertain future event(s) not TR AEBIZES 2 FHEE KK
wholly within the control of the Group. %T—’?% SEEE S RERERE ©
Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the RABEREEFERAEEES
consolidated statement of financial position of the Group. SRR RS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

(i) A person or a close member or that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

Q)

@

)

Has control or joint control over the Group;

Has significant influence over the Group; or

Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
condition applies:

Q)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same Group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
any entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Related parties (Continued)

A related party is defined as follows: (Continued)

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
condition applies: (Continued)

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future.

3.1 Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

There were no critical judgements made by management in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies that
have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements during the current financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are set out below:

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of intangible asset

The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and
related depreciation charges for property, plant and
equipment and amortisation of software development
expenditure are based on commercial factors which
could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitors’ actions in response to
the market conditions. The Group anticipates that the
residual values of its property, plant and equipment and
software development expenditure will be insignificant.
As a result, residual values are not being taken into
consideration for the computation of the depreciable
amount. Changes in the expected level of usage and
technological development could impact the economic
useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

120 C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2020

BEAEFHETRMES @

32 fEEtFHERRNEERE
RREA BARRRNEIERR
KRGt ARERRNEMERKR
(AAEERRT—EMHREEHRE
ERERREEFHENAENSE
RER) HHWTF

() ME- -BERRBOFERE
B EBE
BYE - BERRBOREGRE
E-FERAFHARERITES
F3 LARe R 1 5 3% B Sz B 81 BY
GEERBEEREFL M
ZERZFEEHNKMA
1 e 5 3 B T R FE 7 SR EX
NITEMEEEREFH K&
B HY¥E BB KRR B
DU & 1 B 3 ) 2 BY R 65 B
ERTBEXR-RAIL E5t8
FITEE AR R oMb R 51 K T BR
BE - FREAE A KT R bl 8
ERONEEHOIEETEZTE
7E BY 4505 AT AR A A R R BR
BE HItRRNEERA T
(ERI



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs to sell is based on past binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).

(b)

(c)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

BEARGHHET R &S @

32 fEEtFHERRNEERE

122

(Continued) (€=)

(c) Provision for expected credit losses on trade (c) HBEZEWHIBMTEIREEEE
receivables (Continued) BE @
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s BEETERVERLAERN
historical observed default rates. The Group will ErBRRBENEXSE AEEH
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss R ZE BB > LURTHE 1 B R R
experience with forward-looking information. For BEELEEBEBLSR HUW:
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross T FER B R (BN AEE
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over wE AR ERKR—FERE
the next year which can lead to an increased number CHAEEREMEENH
of defaults in the financial sector, the historical default SEMN EREELEY
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical EoREZREAB AEFY
observed default rates are updated and changes in the EHELERBOXEL DM
forward-looking estimates are analysed. BB L ETRVEE)
The assessment of the correlation among historical FFEELHRBELR  FHAIK
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions B RTBEREEBREZHE
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of BAERET BEEZ G5 - A
ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and EEEBEEHERRER
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical BER TS EERGR - AE
credit loss experience and forecast of economic ENEFEERRESRRK
conditions may also not be representative of EAR R TER TR A SE AR
customer’s actual default in the future. The information BERRENBERENBER-B
about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is RAEEE S EWRIETER
disclosed in Note 27(a). EEBENERNRHE27(a)

=
(d) Software development expenditure (d) EHFEERX

Software development expenditure are capitalised in
accordance with the accounting policy for research
and development costs in Note 2.7. Determining the
amounts to be capitalised requires management to
make assumptions regarding the expected future
cash generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amounts of capitalised
development costs were RM4.1 million (2019: RM3.4
million).
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

4. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 4. KBHEERIIIUAHNNNE
CUSTOMERS
4.1 Disaggregated revenue information 41 WamESEEN
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue TXHEHIAERRBRERITULS
from contracts with customers: AN m DA
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
1818 E 1A1EZE
20205 20194
12831H 124A31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
wEE FLEH FTLEFH
Type of services RFsLEERY
Outsourced document SN E IR RS
management services 74,434 64,487
Enterprise software solutions: ERERAFE .
— Customised software — 7E R 1,505 6,505
— Electronic document warehouse —BFXHFRHR
services 780 534
Total revenue from KEEERTIL AN
contracts with customers 76,719 71,526
Geographical markets Hhisy 15
Malaysia BRI 75,733 66,750
Singapore N 986 4,776
Total revenue from contracts KEEFRIILAANERE
with customers 76,719 71,526
Timing of revenue recognition I 25 FE SR A RF R
At a point in time 12 BB 2 74,434 64,487
Over time 1 —E B 2,285 7,039
Total revenue from contracts RKEEFRITIEHNEK S
with customers 76,719 71,526
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

4. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 4. KREBEEPRIISHNKE @
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
4.2 Performance obligations 42 EBHEME

124

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Outsourced document management services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time and
payment is generally due upon completion of the service.

Customised software

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and
payment is generally due upon achieving pre-agreed billing
milestones.

Electronic document warehouse services

The performance obligation is satisfied over-time and
payment is generally due in advance at the beginning of the
service period.

ERAEBEBEANSENERBRRN
T

S E IR AR TS
BHETZEBRETE —RER
PR 75 52 Al B 1 K

TE HER 1
BHUEERREEITE-—RIRER
E‘E?ET%EE’JEE XA B B BASZ Y

BEFXHFRHIRT
BHEER—BREBRETREN™®
—RERRBHABREGA A
o

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance RESEHPEPEFRFRBNEE R

obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at reporting BIHIARERET HRZEEN
date are, as follows: T

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20204 20194

12831H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000

wER FoEH ToaH

Expected to be recognised: FEHEARS A T RFREIREST ©

Within one year —FENR 1,649 1,136

More than one year —FE 3,766 4,225

5,415 5,361

The Group applies the practical expedient on the exemption
to disclose the information on the remaining performance
obligations that have original expected durations of one year
or less.

The remaining performance obligations expected to be
recognised in more than one year as at 31 December 2020
relate to the enterprise software solutions to be satisfied
either within or more than two years (2019: within six years).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

5. OTHER INCOME 5. HftgA
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194F
1A1HZE EAE=ES
20205 20195
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
EE FoER FLEE
Bank interest income IRITFI B UA 604 468
Net realised foreign currency exchange gains B2 IRIMNEE R UG F 58 422 -
Government grants* B B 558 -
Others Hih 93 98
1,677 566
* The Group received certain government grants for the : Z’S%ﬁ%’?%%ﬁﬁ&é‘%ﬁﬁ K ER
- . ) B TEBAT#EN - 122020912831 H » &
stabilisation of employment in Malaysia and Hong Kong. 75 B L 2 8 B 77 o4 5 022 o B 5 4 = 3 2R
There were no unfulfiled conditions or contingencies relating EIE (20194 © &) o
to these grants as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RBREMZ
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20195
1A1HZE 1H1BZE
20204 20194
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
KER FoEE FoER
Interest expenses on: TAIEENF S -
— Term loan —EHIE®R 597 846
— Overdraft -5 10 3
- Others —HAh - 29
— Lease liabilities (Note 21) —HEaE (1) 23 17
Amortisation of transaction costs (Note 20) R 5 A #E (iz520) 20 20
650 915
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

7.

126

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The following items have been included in arriving at profit before

BRI AN i F]
TR S B S ARRATER :

tax:

1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20195
1B18E 1H18&
20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
EM TEH LEE
Auditors’ remuneration - statutory ZEENIN S — 5 420 247
Staff costs (Note 9) BT A (fizF9) 9,281 7,233

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #)2 -k R KRB EITE (fEE12)

(Note 12) 1,819 1,969
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 13) EREEENE (H:H13) 238 107
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14) mLEERHE (F14) 678 677
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade B 5 FEUNRIBTEHRE BB EE

receivables (Note 15) (FFzx15) 455 170
Bad debts written off: IRARINEE

— trade receivables — B F WIS 96 =

— other receivables —HMEW IS 224 =
Allowance for unutilised leave REV R HR A 76 =
Tax penalty RIS 370 -
Net unrealised foreign currency exchange loss — REIR NS bE R E5 183 58 144
Legal and other professional fee FRREMEEER 5,268 195
Listing expenses hEX 4,885 3,540
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

8. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 8. 8k (HH B
Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s SREXR (BB  BAINLEZEERBEEBA
(loss)/profit attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted Féfﬁ AEE (B1B) aFBRUMBEER
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial THEINNBBERMEFLDHAE -
year.
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic TREPEGRERNREE (B8 BAE
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share computations: BT WA RBRGEE
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
1A1HZE ERI=ES
2020 20196
12H31H 12831H
RM'000 RM'000
°ER LER
(Loss)/Profit net of tax attributable to SYNSIEZ= PN G
owners of the parent (RM’000) (B8 &) (FLFH (5,065) 13,053
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for FEi st & &R EAEFIM
basic earnings per share computation (000) ZERMEFHE (TR 752,459 600,000
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (RM sen) BREX (BE) B (LFHD) (0.67) 2.18

The weighted average number of ordinary Shares used to calculate
the basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020
represented 200 ordinary shares of the Company as at 1 January
2020, 599,999,800 ordinary shares of the Company issued
under the capitalisation issue, and weighted average number of
152,459,016 ordinary shares of the Company issued upon the
listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
represented 200 ordinary shares of the Company as at 1 January
2019 and 599,999,800 ordinary shares of the Company issued
under the capitalisation issue, as if these additional shares issued
under the capitalisation issue had been in issue throughout the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

9. STAFF COSTS 9. BIMZAK

1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20205 20194

1B1HE 1B1HE

20204 20194

12H31H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000
rE FoEE FLoEH
Salaries and performance related bonuses e R BRIFAERBIIEA 9,697 7,718
Pension scheme contributions BIREETEHR 925 771
Other employee benefits HithEEEF 15 23
10,637 8,512

Less: Capitalised as software development BB EABERERE

expenditure (Note 14) (HF5E14) (1,356) (1,279)

9,281 7,233

Included in staff costs are Executive Directors’ remuneration as ETHASENFI0RENNITESH

disclosed in Note 10.

A

=H

)
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

9. STAFF COSTS (Continued) 9. BETIM%E @
The five highest paid employees during the year included FARLGREHFHNEECEMBZES
two directors (2019: two directors). The details of directors’ (2019%F | MBLESE) - BHFHMFE })ﬁ
remuneration are disclosed in Note 10. Details of the remaining BERKHEE10- FREER=% (20194 ¢
three (2019: three) highest paid employees whom are non-directors L) MIIEEENRSFHMEENEE QD—F
during the year are as follows:
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
1B18E 1B1BE
20204 20194
12H31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
EE FLEH TLEH
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEREYHIE 783 739
Performance related bonuses BRITAARIAITEAL 377 37
Pension scheme contributions BIREEEHR 49 50
1,209 826
The number of three highest paid employees of the Group FREFWRBENFEUTHENAER =
(excluding executive directors) whose total remuneration during the HEEHNEE FEERITER HES
year fell within the following bands are analysed below: MU -
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
1B1BE ERI=ES
Group 20205 20194
EE 12831H 12831H
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0007 75 Z2,000,0007& 7T 1 =

During the year, no (2019: Nil) remuneration was paid by the Group
to the Directors or any of the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

rEE AEEMERNEFNENLSLR
=R E S IR EN (20194F : ) - 1F %
UD)\ZIK%&TEUD)\ZIK%IE%B’\JEL%UJZ
R BER A E -
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10.

130

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The details of remuneration received/receivable by the Directors of

EEHM

FEREENHREREEWR BRZH

the Group for the financial year are as follows: BB -
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind contributions Bonus remuneration
e 2R Bifg
ik BMRIE HEGE TE4 iz
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
FeER FeER FeER FeER FeER
31 December 2020 2020%12B31H
Executive Directors; nrE=S:
Frank Ling Frank Ling 87 834 102 66 1,089
Will Ling Will Ling 87 834 102 66 1,089
174 1,668 204 132 2,178
Non-executive Director: FHITES:
Ling Sheng Shyan Ling Sheng Shyan 87 = = = 87
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIUFFRTES
Eugenia Yang Br& 87 - - - 87
Lee Yan Kit ZEHE 87 - - - 87
Wong Son Heng Wong Son Heng 87 S S S 87
261 - - - 261
522 1,668 204 132 2,526
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind  contributions  remuneration
e 2UR BikE
e B & AT Mg
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
SER FeEm FeEs $ER
31 December 2019 2019128318
Executive Directors: HTEE:
Frank Ling Frank Ling - 835 95 930
Wil Ling Will Ling - 835 95 930
- 1,670 190 1,860

There was no (2019: Nil) arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the financial

year.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11. FRiS#AX

1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194F
1B1BZE D=R=ES
20205 20195
12831H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
TEE TLEH FTL5EH
Malaysian income tax: ERFADERER
— Current year —BRIEE 3,581 5,859
— Under provision in prior years —BEEERERE 1,937 111
5,518 5,970
Deferred tax (Note 22): EERTE (YEE22) -
— Relating to origination and reversal of — R EBRNES RERDBRH
temporary differences (127) 8)
— Under provision in prior years —BEFEEREEBERE 378 =
251 @®)
Income tax expense PRSI 5,769 5,962
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For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

11.

132

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax
rate of 24% of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the
Company is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the

11. FRriSMRBEX @

W FTS 75 ok £ R 5t FE SR A A 3%
ERARATERE24%1E o

RERSHESHNRAURER xR HA
RHRSESHMERPRSR-

BRANREZEMBRKKFENRRA
AR SRAXARAEBRBRME

effective income tax rate of the Group is as follows: MREFENMEREASZNEERNT !
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
1B1BE 1B1HZE
20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
wER FoEH ToaH
Profit before tax PRI ATAF 704 19,015
Tax at a rate of: MR
— Malaysia 24% (2019: 24%) — R PEEE24% (20194 © 24%) 3,047 4,564
- Hong Kong 17% (2019: 17%) —&EB17% (20194 1 17%) (1,909)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes TMIREM S Ao RN 2,580 1,357
Income not subject to tax BERR W (229) -
Effect of tax savings* R Fo (35) (70)
Under provision of deferred tax in prior years BREFERIERBEERE 378 =
Under provision of income tax in prior years BEFEMREREERE 1,937 111
Income tax expense for the year FRMMEREX 5,769 5,962

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate
reconciliations for each national jurisdiction and eliminating intra-

group transactions.

*

Malaysian companies with paid up capital of not more than RM2.5 *

million are subject to a tax rate of 17% (2019: 17%) on their first

RM500,000 of chargeable income.
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g =
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. ¥ -BEKRRE
Computer

Factory Renovation Plant and and Motor Furniture Office

building Shop lot of building machinery software vehicles  and fittings equipment Total

THEF s BFHE  BRRER  EWREH RE REREE HARE At
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
5%E SER SEH YER PER SEH TR YER 9ER SEH
31 December 2020 2020%12R318
Cost R
A1 January 2020 1202051518 1,487 3505 4549 4621 4,391 Jall 493 972 20729
Additions hE - - - 105 532 - 10 Y] 689
At 31 December 2020 20205126318 1,487 3505 4549 4,726 4,923 m 503 1,014 21418
Accumulated depreciation RithE
A1 January 2020 1202051518 407 450 2,203 3,777 2299 102 368 798 11,004
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRET (H37) 30 70 430 29 869 9 kil 86 1,819
At 31 December 2020 120205126310 437 520 2633 4072 3,168 Jall 3% 884 12,823
Net carrying amount RE3E 1,050 2985 1916 654 1,755 - 105 130 8595
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n\7|'\

12.

134

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. MF KB KRR @)

(Continued)
Computer Capital
Factory Renovation Plant and and Motor Furniture Office work in
building Shop lot of building machinery software vehicles and fittings equipment progress Total
i3]
THiEF A B¥B%  BRREE  ERREA RE  RERKE HARME BFIR L]
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
5%E FER SEH SEH FER ER SEH SEH FER ER SEH
31 December 2019 20195128310
Cost g2
A1 January 2019 R2019E1A1H 1,487 3,505 4579 5,954 3972 m 47 1,049 780 2514
Additions HE - - - 18 225 - 2 8 - 23
Wrte off sk - - (30) (1,881) (56) - (16) 89) - (2,068)
Reclassiication ENnE - - - 530 %0 - = = (780) =
At 31 December 2019 20195128318 1,487 3,505 4549 4621 4,391 Jall 493 972 - 20729
Accumulated depreciation B3t
A1 January 2019 R2019F1A18 ki 380 1,764 4,672 1473 676 345 767 - 10454
Charge for the year (Note 7) /B (Kf37) 30 70 439 36 865 % 3 114 - 1969
Wte off s - - - (1,281) (39 - (16) 83) - (1419
At 31 December 2019 120195128314 407 450 2,203 kN 2299 702 368 798 - 11,004
Accumulated impairment ~ B3tHfE
At1 January 2019 20191 A1H - - - 649 - - - - - 649
Wite off i S S - (649) - - - - - (649)
At 31 December 2019 120195125318 - - - - - - - - - -
Net carmying amount FESE 1,080 3,055 2,346 844 2092 9 125 174 - 9725

As at 31 December 2020, factory building and shop lot with
carrying amounts totaling RM4,035,000 (2019: RM4,135,000) are
pledged as security for banking facilities of the Group as disclosed

in Note 20.
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13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 13. FREEE
The Group has lease contracts for leasehold land, office premise AEBMHEESEFMBAHEELTH - HAEY
and data centre used in its operation, which generally have lease ERBEFROITUMESLS HEPE—KS
terms between 85 and 97 years, between 5 and 10 years and 2 AN FBEEITHF N N FEEI0FEK24F ©

years respectively.

Leasehold Office Leased
land premise data centre Total

HELM WMAEME HEHERD et
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
F£E CER FOER EH EH
31 December 2020 202012831H
Cost (5%
At 1 January 2020 120201811 3,621 482 - 4,103
Additions hE - - 309 309
As at 31 December 2020 12020F12831H 3,621 482 309 4,412
Accumulated depreciation Zetine
At 1 January 2020 120201811 497 244 - 741
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRRAZ (IFE7) 24 59 155 238
As at 31 December 2020 12020%F12831H 521 303 155 979
Net carrying amount IREEE 3,100 179 154 3,433
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
Cost [p&i
At 1 January/31 December 2019 20191818 /128318 3,621 482 - 4,103
Accumulated depreciation Zstine
At 1 January 2019 20191811 449 185 - 634
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRRAZ (fIFE7) 48 59 = 107
As at 31 December 2019 12019128318 497 244 - 741
Net carrying amount IREEE 3,124 238 = 3,362
As at 31 December 2020, leasehold land is pledged as security for R2020F12831H  HE L EHRIEA
banking facilities of the Group as disclosed in Note 20. M 5E20FT 1R BB U A S E SRAT R & AU o
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14.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14. BEZEE
Software development expenditure LR e
Streamline Streamline
document document
Streamline Streamline management management
output electronic system system
management data phase | phase I
system  warehouse (‘DMS (‘DMS
(“OMS”) (“EDW”) phase ) phase I") Total
Streamline Streamline
document document
Streamline Streamline management management
output electronic system system
management data 142 1424
system  warehouse ("Dms ("DmS
(fomsy) (TEDW)) FRE) B fit
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
F5E SER SER SER SER LER
31 December 2020 20205125318
Cost B
At 1 January 2020 1202018 848 1,354 1,185 1,716 5,108
Additions (Note 9) HE (i &9) = - - 1,356 1,356
At 31 December 2020 120208128310 848 1,354 1,185 3,072 6,459
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 January 2020 1202061516 680 677 315 - 1,672
Charge for the year (Note 7) ERFEx (157) 168 271 239 - 678
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 848 948 554 - 2,350
Net carrying amount REEE = 406 631 3,072 4109
31 December 2019 2019128310
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 1201961818 848 1,354 1,185 437 3,824
Additions (Note 9) AE (fiz19) - - - 1279 1,279
At 31 December 2019 120198128310 848 1,354 1,185 1,716 5,108
Accumulated amortisation Rty
At 1 January 2019 120191818 510 406 79 - 995
Charge for the year (Note 7) FRREZ (17 170 27 236 = 677
At 31 December 2019 120196128310 680 677 315 - 1,672
Net carrying amount REFE 168 677 870 1,716 3,431

Software development expenditure relates to staff costs (Note 9)
incurred for the development of software used by the Group to

generate revenue.
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Amortisation

Amortisation of software development expenditure is included
in the “Cost of sales” line item in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Impairment testing

The carrying value of the intangible assets is expected to be
recovered from probable future economic benefits that are
expected to be generated from the commercial exploitation of these
intangible assets. The remaining amortisation period at the financial
year end is less than 5 years.

The recoverable amounts of the intangible assets have been
determined based on value in use calculations using projected cash
flows from financial budgets approved by management covering
the useful lives of the intangible assets. The discount rates and the
forecast gross profit margin applied to the cash flow projections are
as follows:

14.

BREE @®

MO FEREH ARa2ERm R
MHEMRAIBEA -

R (E R
RAENREERSBUBREZSE
BAENBERABDEENRRQHE
) & R U] o 1 R BUER 2 R B9 38 B 4 6 68
IDFRBEE o

BREENNRLOSECREECREE
SEEE EREAKEEESERER
WEEREREHNYHRAENTERNIR
TRE - BANRZRERAMNBRER
FRAEMRNT

2020 2019

20204 20194

Key assumptions: RM'000 RM'000
PSR - FoEH FOEH
Forecast gross profit margin TRRIER = 83.8% 85.1%
Discount rate ARIR = 13.0% 15.0%

Forecast gross profit margin - budgeted gross margin represents
the past performance of the Group and expected market
development.

RAENR-BREEMNXIEAEENBRE
RENBHTHER-
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14.

138

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment testing (Continued)

Discount rate — Discount rate represents the current market
assessment of the risks specific to each CGU, regarding the
time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets
which have not been incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The
discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances
of the Group and its operating segments and derived from its
weighted average cost of capital (‘WACC”). The WACC takes
into account both cost of debt and cost of equity. The cost of
equity is derived from the expected return on investment by the
Group’s investors. The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing
borrowings the Group is obliged to service. Segment-specific risk
is incorporated by applying individual beta factors. The beta factors
are evaluated annually based on publicly available market data.

Business development — there will be no major changes in the
existing political, legal and economic conditions in Malaysia.

The following sensitivity analysis illustrates the impact of
hypothetical increase of discount rate by 1% or decrease of our

forecast gross profit margin by 1%.

On the basis that all other assumptions in calculation remain

14.

BEE @
AEAE @

MREX-PRXERXRTELBUNRTTE
RBEE R 5T S R EEEREE
ERERMARESREGFNVEBEE
E’MEEUHB&EOEEIE%‘EJr%EﬁE?K%@&
HEBNMIARBR  LHEMEFH
ERAE (TNEFHERZE)) SH M
BT E AR ARR R R B R #
mAl A I AREAERREENTR
HRERK -EERTERNTEREERE
EHEN BER - DI ERRHZBE
RENBMRE#FA - BthRZETIREL

FMeRmBEREsFEET G
EBEE-BRADNERMBUA ERK

ERRGEEREH -

TOEURE D A R BA R ER AR IR KL N1 %
IR ER KB 1%L

R ENAAEEMBRER TENEE

constant, an increase of 1% in discount rate and a decrease of Bl 3R 238 101 % K FTRRI B 2 M % 8
1% in forecast gross profit margin would result in the recoverable Kol ElEER LT -
amount to decrease as follows:
2020 2019
20205 20195
RM'000 RM'000
TEH SEE
Discount rate increased by 1% ARIR I NN1% 77 45
Forecast gross profit margin decreased by 1%  FERIEFF R/ 1% 56 28
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15. B KRHEMEWKRIAE
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12831H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000
TEH FLEH FTLEH
Trade receivables B S EWERIE
Third parties F=hH 28,400 19,995
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B FERRE B R IEEE (1,221) (766)
Trade receivables, net B EWERIE R 27,179 19,229
Other receivables HinfEUWRTRIE
Current TRED
Deposits e 825 303
Sundry receivables H iU RIE 83 537
GST receivable from customers EWEENEm&IRER - 83
GST recoverable A W [B] R K AR TS AR - 635
Prepayments FETRIE 4,855 2,939
Amounts due from related parties [E UK BBt 5 =RIE 10 6
Amounts due from directors [EWEEHIE - 3,887
Non-Current JETRED
Prepayments FEfI®RIE 11,647 =
Other receivables, net HihEWFRIEF 58 17,420 8,390
Total trade and other receivables BB R E MW TRIE4RE 44,599 27,619
Less: GST recoverable B U R A AR TSR - (6395)
Less: Prepayments B TENRIE (16,502) (2,939
Total debt instruments at amortised costs RN AT ENEF T ELEEE

(excluding cash and bank balances) (FEERERIRITER) 28,097 24,045
Trade receivables B S EWKRIE

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on
30 days (2019: 30 days) terms. They are recognised at their
original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial

recognition.

BEEWMIELRST B HREE A30K
(20194F : 30K) - HIZR =L FEM
ERSBEREREN S RBENAFE
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15. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15. B REMEITRIE @
Trade receivables (Continued) B S EITRIE (@)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of MR EARZEZARATIREIEEE
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss BNE ZEWFIENRE ST -
allowance, is as follows:
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
EME TLEH TLEH
Within 1 month 1EHA RN 8,554 7,947
1 to 2 months 1ZE2(8H 4,211 3,026
2 to 3 months 2E3EA 3,908 1,599
Over 3 months SEHA UL 10,506 6,657
27,179 19,229
Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit TXHY B 5 EWIETARE EEBEE
losses of trade receivables: HBrED
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
12A31H 12H31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
EM FLEHE TLHEH
At beginning of the year REY 766 596
Allowance during the year (Note 7) FREE (HEET7) 455 170
At end of the year REXR 1,221 766
The information about the credit exposures are disclosed in Note BREERONERIFERKEE27(@)
27(a).
Amounts due from related parties and FEUR BAES 75 R B RRIA
directors
These amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are ZERBELAEIRE AT ERBREXE
repayable on demand. = o
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16. CONTRACT ASSET/LIABILITIES

BNEE 8R

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH FLEH FTLEH
Contract asset BHEE
Amounts due from customers EREREREIREGHTIE
contract work-in-progress 378 -
Contract liabilities aHaE
Advance enterprise software solutions AW ERGRRASE 583 -
Advance outsourced document FEWSMA S B IR AR 7S
management services 156 S
739 28

Contract asset relates to revenue earned from project
implementation services as receipt of consideration is conditional
on successful completion of implementation. Upon acceptance of
work progress by the customer and issuance of billing to customer,
the amounts recognised as contract assets are reclassified to trade
receivables.

Contract liabilities include enterprise software solutions billed in
advance for which revenue will be recognised over the contractual
period and advanced billing to customers for the provision of
outsourced management services that is to be satisfied within one
year.

BNEERNIER BRBRIEAR
B LR BAREREMITERE S
FINE - B RIFM TR ER L ME R L
ERB AN CREENSREENSD
BRBESRYGRIE.

BNARERERNERPAAEEMARE
TR EERFERTERBR —FN
MIEHEIMNNEERBRLOEFRL
ENEEE
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17.

18.

142

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17. AT EHABENEHREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
12831H 12HB31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEE FoEH Fots
Money market fund EEHIEES 4,200 =

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss of the Group
represents investment in money market fund with financial
institutions. Fair value of this investment is determined by reference
to the net asset value of the fund. Any subsequent changes in fair
value is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of the above investment was determined using level 2
fair value hierarchy which is based on significant observable inputs
other than the quoted price at reporting date.

AEBRATEH ABHNHEHEEER
ERERBBNEET RS ZRE Y
ATENESERS T BEFETERE -
ATEZ BB B AR

REEEH LRRENATEDERS
2R ATERER ERBREUIERTEH
AR EE-

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 18. IRWERIRITAEER
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12HB31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEE ToEH SEH
Cash on hand and at banks FHEREKRIBITER 11,614 7,189
Deposits with licensed banks NIEFREIRITHER 29,217 18,908
40,831 26,097

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Deposits with licensed banks are made for varying
periods between one day and six months (2019: one day and three
months) depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interests at the respective deposit rates. During
the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the interest rates
of the Group range from 0.15% to 2.10% (2019: from 3.10% to
3.55%) per annum.
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18. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

19.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise the following at the reporting date:

18.

RERIRITHE @
REERERBERMS RREEH ]
SRASEENOE THEE

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEE FoEE T45E4E
Cash and bank balances fﬁ%?ﬁ’zfﬁﬁ EER 40,831 26,097
Less: Deposit with a licensed bank AR ERITIIERR
with maturity more than 3 months ( | HA H BREBB3ME ) (24,303) -
Cash and cash equivalents BENRIREEEY 16,528 26,097
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. B REMBEMTRIE
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
wER TEH SEE
Trade payables B EAHE
Third parties BT=5 1,090 969
Amounts due to related parties &S BE Bt 5 =3B 120 224
1,210 1,193
Other payables HnfE(ITRIE
Accruals fEst &R 1,415 1,634
Sundry payables Hh I8 533 328
SST payable FE(T ARFE 77 227 171
Deferred revenue IEIE W - 28
Amounts due to related parties [ RE Bt /5 =R 1B 13 =
2,188 2,161
Total trade and other payables B o REMBESTRIEEEE 3,398 3,354
Add: Loans and borrowings (Note 20) i/ %ﬁiﬁ&%?x (M35%20) 18,470 16,388
Add: Lease liabilities (Note 21) i BEEasE Mske1) 352 305
Less: Deferred revenue PN @EH&E - (28)
Less: SST payable R FE R (227) (1)
Total other financial liabilities Hithi# s A st 289
at amortised cost SR BEEE 21,993 19,848
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19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade payables at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

19.

B 5 R Bt FE (I TRIE (@)

REBREHAREZERUREBERER

BUEREC D ATEN T

B &7

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
EME TLEH TLEH
Within 1 month EEE 588 435
1 to 2 months 1ZE2{8H 289 556
2 to 3 months 2E3EH 153 -
Over 3 months SEA UL 180 202
1,210 1,193
Trade payables B S EIRIEA
These amounts are non-interest bearing and the normal trade terms ZERBEAE ) EEMNE FZHR A30
are 30 days. Xe
Sundry payables HthFE {4 FRIA

These amounts are non-interest bearing. Other payables are
normally settled on an average term of 6 months.
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20. LOANS AND BORROWINGS . BRRMER
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH TEH S
Current pi
Secured: BigE
Term loan 1 EHRRERA 2,415 2,136
Bank overdraft RITHEL 1,457 =
Flexi loan BEIEM 2,857 =
Less: Unamortised transaction costs B REBIERZ 5 A (19) (18)
6,710 2,118
Non-current JETRED
Secured: BigE
Term loan 1 ERER 11,853 14,384
Less: Unamortised transaction costs BRI S A (93) (114)
11,760 14,270
Total loans and borrowings B ER4E%E 18,470 16,388
Unamortised transaction costs RBHZZ A
At beginning of the year REY 132 152
Incurred during the year FRNESE - -
Amortisation for the year (Note 6) FEiE (f95E6) (20) (20)
At end of the year REXR 112 132
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20. LOANS AND BORROWINGS (Continued) 20. EMBKfER @

The remaining maturities of the loans and borrowings at year end RERERRERWERTEEHEHNOT -
are as follows:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH FoERE ToERE
Within 1 year 1FER 6,710 2,118
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 3@3’\1 FENRBR2E 2,480 2,220
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years BR2EBRERSE 7,986 7,337
Later than 5 years BR5E 1,294 4,713
18,470 16,388
Term loan 1 (floating rate), bank overdraft EHIER CZEFIZR) R1TEX: (F
(floating rate) and FlexiLoan (floating rate) BHE) REFER (ZEFIFR)
These borrowings are secured by the followings: ZEBRUTHEIBEIR
()  first party open charge over the leasehold land and factory () HAERHEEIMRTIHEFNS
building of the Group; N EiE
(i) first party open charge over shoplot of the Group; and (iy HEAEEESHEHHMWE—F LFHET
;&
(i)  corporate guarantee by the Company. (i) ERBZIEEER
The interest rate per annum at the reporting date for the loans and ERREBRREHREBANENEDT

borrowings are as follows:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20205 20194

12A31H 12H31H

Group % %
TE % %
Term loan 1 TEEF 3.50 4.75
Bank overdraft RITEX 5.60 =
Flexi loan BEEM 3.50 =
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21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21. THE&E
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
wER TEH LEHE
Current pi
Lease payment on data centre £ iy =N -—ENE 118 -
Lease payment on office premise WAEYERENR 74 71
192 71
Non-current JETED
Lease payment on office premise WAEYERENR 160 234
Total lease liabilities HEaEREE 352 305
Set out below is the movement in lease liabilities: TXEFEESRNES !
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEH TER SEHE
At beginning of the year REY] 305 372
Addition RE 268 -
Accretion of interest (Note 6) FEEM (F5E6) 23 17
Payment of lease liabilities TREEaE (244) (84)
At end of the year RER 352 305
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21.

148

LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 21. HHEBE®
The remaining maturities of the lease liabilities at year end are as REREESGENEGTEHBEWT -
follows:
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12H31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
EE TEH LEHE
Within 1 year 1FER 192 71
Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years BIEBRERE 78 74
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years BIRoOFEBRERSF 82 160
352 305

The interest rates per annum at the reporting date for the lease
liabilities are as follows:

HESERREANNFNRNT

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20204 20194

12A31H 12H31H

Group % %
A EE % %
Lease payment on data centre FHEPOMHEENR 4.90 =
Lease payment on office premise WAEYERENAR 4.90 4.90

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

22. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 22, REMRIBEGE
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12831H 124A31H
Group RM'000 RM'000
FEMH SEH SE
At beginning of the year REY] 592 660
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 11) B A FEsE (FiisE11) 251 @)
At end of the year REXR 843 592

The components and movements of deferred tax liabilities and

RIBHAMBEERNELRBEER

assets during the financial years prior to offsetting are as follows: BEEMNMAME D REBUWT !

Property, Other

plant and Intangible temporary
equipment assets differences Total

M- Hith e By
BERRE BV EE bt et
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
KE&EE ER ER TER TER
At 1 January 2020 20201818 9 823 (325) 592
Recognised in profit or loss RERNER 244 163 (156) 251
At 31 December 2020 1120208128318 338 936 (481) 843
At 1 January 2019 7201941818 190 679 (269) 600
Recognised in profit or loss RERARER (96) 144 (56) ®)
At 31 December 2019 720198128315 94 823 (325) 592
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23. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

23. AR EE

(a) Ordinary share capital (@) EEiRd
Number
Note of shares HK$’000
B s e E FHET
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019181 H ~ 20194

2019 and 1 January 2020 128313 %2020&E181H8 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share capital % & B8 A< 1 110 33(@)  1,462,000,000 14,620
As at 31 December 2020 2020512833 1H 1,500,000,000 15,000

Number of
Notes shares HK$’000 RM’000
B 5% ahE =] FAT TEH
Issued and fully paid: BRTRER
At 1 January 2019, FR2019FE1 810 ~

31 December 2019 and 2019F12H31H &

1 January 2020 2020F181H 200 = =
Capitalisation issue BEARMEET 33(b) 599,999,800 6,000 3,175
Issue of new shares BITHARD 33(c) 200,000,000 2,000 1,058
As at 31 December 2020 202054128 31H 800,000,000 8,000 4,233
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23. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

(Continued)

(b)

Share premium

23.

AR R B A 1B (@)

(b) BRipiEME

2020
20204
RM’000
TEH

At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and 201918 1H ~ 20194
1 January 2020 12831 H 5%2020F181H =

Arising from: Efe:

Capitalisation issue BEARMEET (3,175)
Issue of new shares BITHRAD 65,609
Share issue expenses AP SEITRIS (15,207)
As at 31 December 2020 20205 12831H 47,227

24. OTHER CAPITAL RESERVES

(a)

(b)

Merger reserve

24.

Merger reserve represents the excess of the aggregate of
the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries over the consideration
paid to effect the transfer of shares in Coeus Systems,

Compugraphic Media and C-Link Malaysia.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve represents the exchange differences on

translation of foreign operations.

Hithig A&

(@) Ef#EE
EHFEEENBASDNEER
KABZEBIBF L Coeus Systems-
Compugraphic MediakC-Link
Malaysiafy jg 15 B2 5 L EDN
B30

(b) ERHE

ERFEEHEEREBIINEBNERE
(e
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25. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY 25. EXRABAERS
TRANSACTIONS
Sale and purchase of goods and services BEEmmA iR
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere Bk BA 75 2R 2k H fth 3t 75 IR B BV RR B 5 & L
in the financial statements, the following significant transactions Gh o AEE B ERB S 2 M E’J‘F‘ﬂf%ﬁ?’é
between the Group and its related parties took place at terms SR EFERSHHENERE

agreed between the parties during the financial years:

1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20204 20194
1B1HE =K
20204 20196
12H31H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
wEE T<EH TLER
Related parties: REEE S -
Purchase of goods BEEm 846 973
Director: =
Rental payable ETAE 84 84
Information regarding outstanding balances arising from related E RSB EEHAB ST ZEENRE
party transactions as at reporting date are disclosed in Notes 15 BEGNERERMF15/K19°
and 19.
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25. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

25. EXRMARS @

Compensation of key management personnel FEEEASHM

Key management personnel are those persons having the authority
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities

TEEEBEABEARAREERERAB
ERE REREFNAEREHHAS

of the Group either directly or indirectly including any directors. BiEEMES-
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
1B1BE 1B1HZ
20204 201945
12H31H 12831H
Group RM’000 RM’000
EE FoEH FLEH
Fees B 522 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN REYH®H 2,604 2,143
Pension scheme contributions BRIREETEHR 214 199
3,340 2,342
Included in total key management personnel FTEEBASHFWRBEEE !
compensation are:
Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) EEHB (fF5E10) 2,526 1,860
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26.

27.

154

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments that are not carried at
fair value and whose carrying amounts are
reasonable approximation of fair value

The following are classes of financial instruments that are not

26.

EMTANAFEE
WIFEAFEIREEREESRR
FENSREALENEMIA

LAT%E?F& NFESIREEREER

carried at fair value and whose carrying amounts are reasonable NEENGELMUEN SR TANER !
approximation of fair value:

Note

Fi s
Trade and other receivables B 5 hEMERFRIE 15
Trade and other payables 85 REMENTUE 19
Loans and borrowings BRI &R 20
Lease liabilities HEaE 21

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are
reasonable approximation of fair values, either due to their short-
term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-
priced to market interest rates on or near the reporting date or the
impact of discounting is insignificant.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial risk management policy is to ensure that
adequate financial resources are available for the development of
the Group’s operations whilst managing its financial risks, including
credit risk, interest risk and liquidity risk.

The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines that are
approved by the Board and the Group’s policy is not to engage in
speculative transactions.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group’s

exposure to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives,
policies and processes for the management of these risks.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  27.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(@) Credit risk (a)

HHBRREEBRKRER @

EERRE

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the Group if a
customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arises principally from its receivables from
customers and deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties. Management has a credit policy
in place to control credit risk by dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and deposit with banks and financial
institutions with good credit rating. The exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis and action will be taken for
long outstanding debts.

Exposure to credit risk

At the reporting date, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each
class of financial assets recognised in the statements of
financial position.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Group’s customers are financial institutions which include
banks and insurance companies.

As at 31 December 2020, there were four customers (2019:
two customers) accounted for 61% (2019: 36%) of the total
net trade receivables.

FERRBEERIANTASHF
759!% }EﬁH SHEBMAEER
ERMBERNER AEEXZ
MEERREIEREEKERREA
MR RIT e e R AB B 7K o

FEECKIEAGERFINEF
FERGHEE BEEBHIE—EE
Eﬁ%’%i@éﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiiﬁ
RBARFEEZFAEHTREEFD
iRT &énﬁﬁ%&%%?’“%JEfﬂBﬂﬂOK
EEFEEECEERAR URME
HREEHRRITH-

EEREHO

RBREAH *EENRKREER
RO R R B R R AR &
ReRBEENREEZY -

EERBEFIKT

FEENER TR B1ER
TRFEEBRAT

R2020FE12A31H WE&EER
(2019F  MBER)LEZE
W IE S RAAEZE61% (20194 ¢
36%) ©
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  27.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERE @)

MHBRBREZEBRKRER @

156

Credit risk concentration profile (Continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. As the customers are mainly financial institutions and
insurance companies in Malaysia with similar loss patterns,
the provision rates are based on days past due of the overall
trade receivables. The calculation reflects the probability—
weighted outcome, and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic
conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the financial IT services sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. The
assessment of the correlation between historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
an estimate. The Group’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Generally, trade receivables are written-off if past due for
more than two years and are not subject to enforcement
activity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets
disclosed in Note 15. The Group does not hold collateral as
security.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2020

EERBRETRR (B
RERSHMERBFEERETR
B UStERMEEHR -HR
ERIENFRATHZMEER
RERAE BEBEIARL) BEHR
TSENEZEWGRIERENE X
BB Rt ERBR T HRMELS
RUKRMKRE BT EFHRNA
TEM BRI RREERT
BANGEMAI S FHER -

BREERSVERNAEENELR
RENEKSAE KA ERRREERE
DAt ERNREEREEBEL
B o fl40 > fis TRRI B AR R (BNED A
EEWTE)%EHHHH‘%X FRBIE
AIEERERMITRFEENHS
iﬂD)E'J@%E%éJﬁEEE%@%Oﬁ’S%%E
SR AEEEENELBEREE
MR DA E TR ES) - 5F
HEEHEREBOZR -FBALENRR
RIEHREEBE ZHEERILT B
Gt AEENELEEHRELR
BB R RAT A EEARS
FARRNBERENIER

—fRME > &5 EWRIEN A RIS
BMET B FRHEITHZENT
Dsg- RS HMNESEER
BRRMFIRENSREMEE
WEREE - A& BT ER A E AR
R TEIRR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|'\ j- ?ﬂ iﬁﬁ M-.I- -Li

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 27. BiFEMEIEBEREE @
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERE @
Credit risk concentration profile (Continued) EERAKBETRR (@)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk UTHINBEREAEREZRBIHRIE
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision FABEERNEERRNER :
matrix:

Estimated total
Expected gross carrying

credit loss amount at Expected
rate default credit loss
BEHEE fHEHEN s
BEE IREAEASE BiE5E
Group % RM’000 RM’000
P JE] % TER TEH
31 December 2020 2020%12A31H
Neither past due nor impaired BRBATRRE 1.39% 8,614 120
1 to 30 days past due not impaired BT EI0KREBKRE(E 2.26% 4,383 99
31 to 60 days past due not impaired  #1EE31ZE60KBARE 3.64% 4,008 146
61 to 90 days past due not impaired #1361 Z90K BRI E 4.96% 2,460 122
More than 90 days past due not BRI L BXRFIE
impaired 8.21% 8,935 734
Total st 20.46% 28,400 1,221
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
Neither past due nor impaired BERBATRRE 0.12% 7,571 9
1 to 30 days past due not impaired ~ BEA1 EI0KRBRE(E 0.03% 3,203
31 to 60 days past due not impaired  #1EE31E60KBARE 0.40% 3,285 13
61 to 90 days past due not impaired  #1Ei61ZE90KRBARE 0.40% 1,245 5
More than 90 days past due not BRI L BXRFE
impaired 15.73% 4,691 738
Total st 16.68% 19,995 766
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  27.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MERREEBRREE @

(b)

158

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of the Group’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank borrowings. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate

(b)

IE SN

MEEBRBEEREMTANARY
BRRRFESAEFED B KL
B TR BN P A SR BY L2 ©

ZIK?E@ ARBRITEREENN X
BeoAEEIBERTESRT
E%T/EPH*'JK&@JHBM °77<ﬁ &

fluctuations. However, it is the policy to obtain the most B NEERZBRITEREIGEEINR
favourable interest rates available whenever the Group Bl EESREBENZE.

obtains additional financing through bank borrowings.

The information on maturity dates and effective interest rates AR EEIPRRERIEN
of financial liabilities is disclosed in their respective notes. BERRNE BN -

Interest rate sensitivity FEHRE

The Group’s term loans at floating rates were denominated KEBZIPHAXAENTHER
in Ringgit Malaysia. At the reporting date, if interest rates IBUERBATSERAE NS

had been 50 basis point higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before tax would have been
lower/higher, as follows:

B EFfFAEMEEHRF FEN
BRT > MFIEEFH T RES0EE
&b o Bl 7 52 B B9 BR AR A1 03 ) R D
Mo

1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

20205 20194

1818 E 1A1EE

20204 20194

12831H 12H31H

Group RM'000 RM'000
TER TEH SEE
Effect on profit before tax HERATEN 2 22 86 89
The assumed movement in basis points for the interest MEFREDMBRNEREE

rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable
market environment.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 27. B EGEIEEEREE @)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (o) RBEEEMR
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Group will encounter mEESRBIEAEEENETH
difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. M B EBNAR AEE@EYH
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises primarily from HNnghESRMITIERETHEE
mismatches of the maturities of financial assets and liabilities. MaEE A H R -
The Group’s funding requirements and liquidity risk are FEENBESFTREABES AR
managed with the objective of meeting business obligations NEEBEEANBITEBEE &
on a timely basis. The Group finances its liquidity through EEBANTELENREREAE
internally generated cash flows and minimises liquidity risk by MBETREES UBEBREH
keeping committed credit lines available. BN EAEEEEEURKIZEEME
(RN E & Ak o
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the TERBRNFESHPER SR
Group’s liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual HEEEENAEEESEINHE
undiscounted repayment obligations. se
On demand
or within Two to More than
one year five years five years Total
BEKRY
R—ER _ERE REME st
Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
TEE FTOEH TER FTCER FLEH
At 31 December 2020 142020128318
Financial liabilities EHaf
Trade payables and other payables ~ ERREMTIERE
W&HTAIE 3,171 - - 3,171
Loans and borrowings RER 7,148 11,502 1,316 19,966
Lease liabilities %EE af\ 204 168 - 372
10,623 11,670 1,316 23,509
At 31 December 2019 12019128318
Financial liabilities ERER
Trade payables and other payables %%%ﬁ%’ﬂlﬁ&ﬂ
i RE(T R 3,155 - - 3,155
Loans and borrowings BRRAER 2,809 11,502 4,954 19,265
Lease liabilties HEaE 84 252 - 336
6,048 11,754 4,954 22,756
All financial liabilities of the Group are repayable on demand KAEEMBEESRMEBBERERIN
or within one year. —FREER.
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28. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 28. MEETELENEEEH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Total
liabilities
from
Lease Loans and Dividend financing
liabilities borrowings payable activities
REES
EEN
HEaRE BRRfER FEfFIRE BERE
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
ER FEE FoER EH
Group (Note 21) (Note 20)
EE (MizE21) (HizE20)
1 January 2019 2019F181H 372 18,406 - 18,778
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEESR (84) = = (84)
Repayment of term loan BRTHEN - (2,038) - (2,038)
Interest expense FIEAZ 17 878 = 895
Amortisation of transaction costs RF M = 20 = 20
Interest paid BEfFE - (890) - (890)
Others Hth - 12 = 12
31 December 2019 20195128318 305 16,388 = 16,693
1 January 2020 2020%F1H81H 305 16,388 - 16,693
Dividend declared (Note 30) BEIRRE (Fi1EF30) - - 13,000 13,000
Dividend paid ENKRE = - (13,000) (13,000)
Drawdown of borrowing REUER - 4,314 - 4,314
Addition of lease liabilities HESBIEM 268 - - 268
Repayment of lease liabilities BENEAR (244) - - (244)
Repayment of term loan BETHER - (2,252) - (2,252)
Interest expense FEREY 23 607 = 630
Amortisation of transaction costs RZ M - 20 - 20
Interest paid BRFE - (632) = (632)
Others Hth - 25 - 25
31 December 2020 2020%F12H31H 352 18,470 - 18,822

160

The ‘Others’ line item includes the effect of accrued interest on

loans and borrowings.
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29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 2. EEHE

The Group’s capital management is to maintain a strong capital
base and safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and maintains an optimal capital structure, so as to
maximise shareholders value. Management reviews the capital
structure by considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with the capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio. The Group’s
policy is to maintain a prudent level of gearing ratio that complies
with debt covenant and regulatory requirement. The gearing ratios
at end of the reporting period are as follows:

FEENEAEESEEFRRNES
R REFAEERFBECENED L
FRENBERRE UERFEERK
E-BEBEBREREFTRETKRAERIE
BB R USRS B AR -

REFNABREARE 25BN EHBE
KN TFTRENREEE - RARRFESE
T FTHRNHEEELUR D ES -

rERETREERRLEREEER K&
BB REETRENEESRLE
MEEBREREERTE - NREHARY
EEBMELEENT

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20205 20194
12831H 12H31H
Group RM’000 RM’000
TEE TLEH FTLEH
Loans and borrowings B RER 18,470 16,388
Lease liabilities HEaE 352 305
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENRIE 3,398 3,354
Contract liabilities =E )L 739 =
Less: Cash and bank balances B IRE RIRTTAERR (40,831) (26,097)
Net asset BEEFE (17,872) (6,050)
Equity attributable to the owners representing B AFE(LER P IEEAS4E%E
total capital 80,917 47,992

Capital and net asset BEANEEFE 63,045 41,942
Gearing ratio BEBBLE - -

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the financial year.

RMBEERN FEENEAEEL AL

4T 424
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30.

31.

162

DIVIDENDS 30. BE
Dividends paid in respect of ordinary shares for the financial years MM BEERVNSERRENOT -
are as follows:
1.1.2020 to 1.1.2019 to
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
1A1HZE ERI=ES
20204 20194
12A31H 12831H
Group RM'000 RM'000
rE FoER TLaH
Recognised during the financial year: R B EREST
Dividends on ordinary shares: TiERKE
— Tax exempt dividend for 2019: C-Link —2019FRMKE :
Squared Limited — RM65,000 dollar per C-Link Squared Limited
share — 5 /865,000% T4
13,000 -

On 12 March 2020, the Company declared and paid an interim
tax exempt dividend in respect of 31 December 2019, amounting
to approximately RM13 million representing RM65,000 per share
which was paid on 14 March 2020.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the provision of outsourced data and
document management services. Since this is the only operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment analysis
thereof is presented.

The Group’s revenue from external customers was derived mainly
from its operations in Malaysia, and the non-current assets of the
Group were located in Malaysia as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.
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31. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(@) Geographical information

Geographical information for the Group is presented in Note
4.1.

(b) Information about major customers

Revenue from top 5 customer groups of the Group’s revenue
for each reporting period is set out below:

31. DEEH @
(@) HuFER

REFMIBE R 2541

b) BERFrEFRNEH

REERSHREFTERLRER

MERIR T E AT -

Representing

% of total Sales
revenue amount
L4 IR RY
Bt tHEEEE
Group RM’000
wE <TER
For the financial year ended HZFE2020F 128310 LLIHBEE
31 December 2020
Bank Group A RITEBEA 22.66% 17,381
Bank Group B RITEEB 19.06% 14,620
Bank Group C RITEEC 13.63% 10,454
Bank Group F RITEEF 9.89% 7,587
Insurance Group D REEEED 9.01% 6,909
Total st 74.25% 56,951
For the financial year ended HZE2019F12A31H LB EE
31 December 2019
Bank Group A RITEBEA 18.53% 13,254
Bank Group B RITEEB 14.47% 10,350
Bank Group C SRITEEC 11.65% 8,330
Insurance Group D RIEEED 10.49% 7,500
Retail Customer E TERRE 5.74% 4,103
Total “ast 60.88% 43,537
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. ZAFMEKRER

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

REEFEREBRELADPHERRTRD

Company at the end of the reporting year is as follows: BT
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
20204 20194
12H31H 12831H
RM’000 RM’000
FT<EH FLEH
Assets BE
Non-current asset ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABNKRE 2 1
Current assets REEE
Other receivables HhpEusg 16,401 2,961
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A B RIE 20,749 =
Cash and bank balances B KMIBITHER 5,991 42
43,141 3,003
Total assets BEEHEE 43,143 3,004
Equity and liabilities EmkasE
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables HhpEAFIA 422 11,397
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN EVNGIE ] 86 =
Amounts due to holding companies FETIER A BIFIE 10 =
518 11,397
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (AR BEE 42,623 (8,394)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (A FEE 42,625 (8,393)
Equity gy
Share capital % 4,233 -
Reserve B 38,392 (8,393)
Total equity W 4EEE 42,625 (8,393)
Total equity and liabilities EmkaEERE 43,143 3,004
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 32. ZAFMIEKAR @

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: P sE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABMEBEHHEZNT !
Accumulated Share Exchange Total
losses premium reserve reserves
St 17 18 ERHE R
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
ER ER ER TER
At 1 January 2020 120201818 (8,393) - - (8,393)
Total comprehensive income FERRRE 13,344 - - 13,344
Exchange differences on translation of MBI EBRN
foreign operations ERELE - - (786) (786)
Transaction with owners REBAZRS
Dividend RE (13,000) = = (13,000)
Capitalisation issue ERMEET - (3,175) - (3,175)
Issue of new shares TR - 65,609 = 65,609
Share issue expenses RinETHZ - (15,207) - (15,207)
At 31 December 2020 120205128311 (8,049) 47,227 (786) 38,392
At 1 January 2019 120191818 (4,086) - - (4,086)
Total comprehensive loss SEGERE (4,307) - - (4,307)
At 31 December 2019 12019%12831H (8,393) - - (8,393)
2020 f£¥Rk  C-Link Squared Limited 165



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|- Az j?i&%ﬁj;i

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 #;Z20204 12/931 H LF 1 F/E

33. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

166

(a)

(b)

(c)

Increase of authorised share capital

On 11 March 2020, the Company’s shareholders approved
the increase of authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares of a par value of
HK$0.01 each to HK$15,000,000 divided into 1,500,000,000
shares of a par value of HK$0.01 each by the creation of an
additional 1,462,000,000 shares of a par value of HK$0.01
each.

Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholder passed on
11 March 2020, the Company allotted and issued a total of
599,999,800 ordinary shares, credited as fully paid at par, to
Flash Dragon Company Limited and Jupiter Rain Company
Limited equally on 27 March 2020 by way of capitalisation of
the sum of HK$5,999,998 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company.

Listing of the shares

In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange, 200,000,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at a price
of HK$0.63 per share for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$126,000,000. Dealings in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange commenced on 27 March
2020.

C-Link Squared Limited Annual Report 2020

MHRFEANEREN

(a)

(b)

(c)

ETERRAIE N

7342020£E3)§ 11H> KRB R E
#3381 REESHM ,462,000,00088 5 15
mE{E0. oﬁémﬁﬁﬁxfﬁ BARABEE
A% 7 F§380,00078 7T (93 %38,000,000
RS EE0.O1BTHIRMD) BmME
15,000,000/ 7t (43 %1,500,000,000
RS EE0.01BTTAIARD) ©

BT

7FE'<$F 220203811 BEBMIARE
REBE A RBBEEERB RN
i EIR AV AR 385,090,008 T E A&
16> iR2020F3 827 HIZE B F I
[BFlash Dragon Company Limited/z
Jupiter Rain Company Limitedfic 2% &
2175 3£599,999,8008% A BRF! A& 44
RHZEAR -

[ita0 Mkl

MARBEIRD PR EHmE
Z5/AF)200,000,0000% 45 B2 HE {E0.01
B EERKRZER0.63B T
BIRET RIS RE AR ZAD
#126,000,00038 7T ° A B IR 7
202053827 HFATE RPN E & ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M ERRMEE

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020412/531H LF BT F/E

33. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE
FINANCIAL YEAR (Continued)

(d) Outbreak of COVID-19

33. MHEFEEANEXREHF @

(d) COVID-19j5 %%

The COVID-19 pandemic outbreak in early 2020 has
impacted economic activities worldwide including Malaysia. In
order to control the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Government of Malaysia has imposed various restrictions on
economic activities which include travel restrictions, border
closures and other quarantine measures. These restrictions
had affected our customers in the banking and insurance
industries which led to lower demand for our outsourced
document management services and deferment of
customised software solutions. For the financial year ended
31 December 2020, all these had impacted the financial
performance of the Group as reflected in this set of financial
statements.

The full impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the Group’s
performance for the next financial year could not be
reasonably ascertained at the date of this report. This is due
to the fact that the impact is highly dependent on the degree
to which Malaysia is able to contain the spread of the virus,
speed of the vaccine inoculation initiatives and the economic
recovery effort that are put in-place in the new normal.

The Group is taking great effort to mitigate the effects of the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and is proactively addressing
developments in order to best manage the effects on its
businesses. Notwithstanding the challenging outlook, the
Group will continue to closely monitor the related risks and
impact on the Group’s business segment to ensure long term
business prospects remain stable.

2020 ) & BICOVID-19%& 15

FERIR (BEERADR) LK
JEEN o BIEHICOVID-19Z 1B EE 5
RASHF NS ENE RS E
R4 B HITIRE  RIFBERE
MR E R - ZSRFI B EIRT
ERRETERD  BRH R
AXHERRBOTERBEME W
BE IR AR % o i E20204F
12831 REE  FFEZER
ESSEA- SN R T Y ST PN S
B FERR

REBESEM BEE0EETE
COVID-19& [EH AEBIN T —@R
HEEXRRENEETE- LT ER
TESERTHRADEMERR
FEENEE CHEBHEERE
R EEPRIRNEEERS N
M E °

KEEETERECOVID-19% 15
RENTE IRBREEEER
RMREEEHEBOZE-BE
AR mE EAERREER
NERARRBRRAERERERD
BT E BRARRAEDTIRER

TRRE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RAF5 I 22

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2020 12931 H IFFE

A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities of 2<% B &3 A A M FE B EEWLEIZEG S 28

the Group for the past five financial years is set out below: REERBEBENT !
RESULTS E4
For the year ended 31 December
HE12AHILLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
FLER TREH FLERE FLEE FLEH
Revenue Wz 76,719 71,526 67,095 71,044 68,198
Profit before tax BRIZ AR A 704 19,015 16,615 14,546 12,099
Income tax expense PSRRI (5,769) (5,962) (4,835) (3,391) (2,884)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR (518 /EH (5,065) 13,053 11,780 11,155 9,215
(Loss)/profit for the year FEMLFR (18 /
attributable to: wA
Owners of the Company KRBEREA (5,065) 13,053 11,780 11,155 9,215
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
At 31 December
128318
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000 RM’000
ER CER CEE CER L
Total assets mEE 106,321 70,234 60,244 53,854 51,227
Total liabilities masE 25,404 (22,242) (25,305) (23,695) (12,423)
80,917 47,992 34,939 30,159 38,804
Total equity attributable to: FEL B
Owners of the Company PiN/NCIEZ =N 80,917 47,992 34,939 30,159 38,804

Note: The summary of financial information of the Group for the years of 2016 to  Kizt | &REE2016FEE2018FE NI FHF BRI EiER B
2018 have been extracted from the Prospectus. The summary above does BRER PN ET A B KB ZY R
not form part of the audited financial statements. R —ED o
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

The following expressions shall, unless the content otherwise states, have X ZERBBFIEIN U THEAER FHHE !

the following meanings:

“2021 AGM”

F2021FERRERBEKNE]

“Articles”

4R A

“Audit Committee”
IBZEEE)

“Board”
E5g)

“BVI”
IREEYE

“CG Code”
Mb2EEASTE

“Code Provision(s)
I<FR R

“Company” or “our Company’

/ST

“Companies Law”

MABE]

“Companies Ordinance”
NS SN

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

MERRARER)

the 2021 annual general meeting of the company to be held on Monday, 28
June 2021
RABER2021546H28H (BH—) BITH2021FRRBFAY

the memorandum and articles of association of our Company as amended
from time to time

RATIMEBER A RMAE CREEET)

the audit committee of the Company
RABIEZEER

the board of Directors

Exg

the British Virgin Islands
HERUEE

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time

EARBIMER1 4P (R EE R TR EFEER])

the code provisions set out in the CG Code
EEATRIFTE SRR

C-Link Squared Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which are listed and traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1463)

C-Link Squared Limited> RSB SFMBILNERRERAR HE%
TRMEBZAAER EMREE GRIHHSE : 1463)

the Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman Islands, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

FHEBERRE (RIER]) » BB BRI MUAEM S BN

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BEEEBIE6228 A BRI

Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang, Mr Ling Sheng Chung, Flash Dragon Company
Limited and Jupiter Rain Company Limited, being the controlling shareholders
of our Company

Ling Sheng Hwang?t4 ~Ling Sheng Chung?t4 ~ Flash Dragon Company
Limited K&z Jupiter Rain Company Limited (% 7s/A 5] B91% i A3 58)
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DEFINITIONS
Ex

“Deed”
2245 |

“Directors”

===y

“Group”, “our Group”, “
“our” or “us”

we”

- SE WA A N

“Hong Kong”
r&#)

“HK$”, “HKD”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent(s)’

AT g Bl

“Listing”
Ny

“Listing Date”

rEmBEA

“Listing Rules”

FEmRADL

“Main Board”

FFEMy

170 C-Link Squared Limited

PANIIE=

the deed of non-competition
N

the director(s) of our Company
KAFIESR

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of
its subsidiaries, as the content may require) or, where the context so requires,
in respect of the period before our Company became the holding company
of its present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our Company and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
respective predecessors

ARABIREMBAS (FAREKEAN—KRHALRWBLF BEANE
REME) » RNXEME > NARBMAERENEABNER AT ZAI
AR SR ABIMRANB AR R&ZEWBABIFIEENEBRH BT
ERME) REEZBHRSAE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FREBAFHITEHE

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong
Kong
BEREEGE BT RAW

the listing of Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
RRAR I B A PT EMR £ TR

27 March 2020, the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board
first commence
20203271 IR ERFALETIREZRI B

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

TREFLHRA ETEEST WA M ER

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operating in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange

B PTEENE SR Z M (FNEIEHRETS) » BN FGEMIL B 2
TWATENF
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Model Code” the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time

MRZESFA 1 LHRAINESI0FE( LM BT AERETES I ZNRLEFH) @ REF
D)

“Mr. F Ling” Mr. Ling Sheng Hwang

'F Lingt 4 ¥§  Ling Sheng Hwangt 4

“Mr. S Ling” Mr. Ling Sheng Shyan

'S Ling#e 4 #¥§  Ling Sheng Shyan4t4

“Mr. W Ling” Mr. Ling Sheng Chung

F'W Ling7t 4] 15 Ling Sheng Chung?c 4

“Nomination Committeg” the nomination committee of the Company

RREEE] I ARARLEES

“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated 17 March 2020

HER=ER] {8 ARBEBIA2020F3A17THNIBRER

“Remuneration Committee” the remuneration committee of the Company

ENEE S B ARAFMEES

“Reporting Period” the year ended 31 December 2020

TR & HA 5 EEFE2020F12831BHLEFE

“RM” or “RM cents” Ringgit and Ringgit cents, the lawful currency of Malaysia

SERIRLER B RRAETDAEEBLERRSERL

“Senior Management” the senior management of the Company

EHREERE] 5 AREAEHREEE

“SFC” the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

MBEE 15 BEESKESBEREEEE

“SFO” the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), as amended and supplemented from time to time

5855 K BA G 15 P1) 5 BBEOBE1ERF KB RE & AEHEST RT)

“Share Option Scheme” the share option scheme adopted by our Company on 11 March 2020

MR ST 2 B ARER2020FE3F 11 BERMAE IR EST 2

“Share(s)” ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company

TRe 15 {5 ARERAPEREEC.OIEITHNEBER
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DEFINITIONS
Ex

“Shareholder(s)” the holder(s) of the Shares

TRgER B ROFAEA

“Stock Exchange” or “HKEx” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

B 22 AT T HKEX B BERAERZMBERAE

“Takeovers Code” the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the
SFC, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

Mg <Pl 5 REGEMHN(REWE S RRHLOIETR]) REFEST - BRIUE
s e

“%” per cent

% J 5 B2t
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